NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING and REGULAR MEETING
January 10, 2017
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL
STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing and Regular Meeting of the Montgomery City
Council will be held on Tuesday, January 10, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the City of Montgomery City Halli,
101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas for the purpose of considering the following:

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARING:

Convene into Public Hearing:

1. For the purpose of hearing public comments regarding a request for a Special Use Permit to
operate a Bed and Breakfast located at 811 Caroline Street, Montgomery, Texas as submitted
by Mary Sims.

Reconvene into Regular Session:

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to
speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action
on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time
allowed per speaker may be limited.

CONSENT AGENDA.:

2. Matters related to the approval of minutes for the public hearing and regular meeting held on
December 13, 2016.

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

3. Consideration and possible action regarding the Green Zone Building Program being located
on City leased property as requested by Melanie Davis.

4, Presentation of Development Plans by Phillip LeFevre.




10,

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OFTHE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, GRANTING A SPECIAL
USE PERMIT TO MARY ECKHART SIMS FOR A BED AND BREAKFAST USE OF THE
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 811 CAROLINE STREET, MONTGOMERY, TEXAS 77356,
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF THE PROPERTY AS A BED AND BREAKFAST,
IMPOSING CERTAIN CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND EFFECTIVE DATE.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance;

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, ADOPTING A WATER
CONSERVATION PLAN FOR THE CITY; DESCRIBING THE PURPOSE OF THE PLAN;
PROVIDING WATER CONSERVATION GOALS AND WATER CONSERVATION
PLLAN ELEMENTS; PROVIDING REPEAL AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES;
PROVIDING TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN
IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE UPON APPROVAL.

Consideration and possible action regarding a five (5) foot building line setback variance for
Living Savior Lutheran Church.

Consideration and possible action regarding Styleci‘aft Final Plat for the Hills of Town Creek,
Section 2.

Consideration and possible action regarding authorizing preparation of an amendment to the
Corridor Enhancement Ordinance to prohibit exposed cement block construction.

Consideration and possible action regarding award of the bid for the Pizza Shack area Water
and Sewer Improvement Project,

Consideration and possible action regarding the Comprehensive Policy of Guidelines and
Criteria for Economic Development Incentives.

Consideration and possible action regarding authorization to proceed with Utility and
Economic Feasibility Study for a Master Planned Development located at Lone Star Parkway
and SH 105 east.

Discussion regarding water and sewer tap fees,

Discussion regarding subdivision platting process.

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of MEDC proposed funding for Jason
Long’s City utilities related to construction of a miniature golf course.




EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or
for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the
qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real
property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation
regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)
of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas. (No current items at this time.)

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about
a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy
or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or
decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting,

‘.‘17&1111
"0‘\\190954 6;2? t@
& 0“' J— é

o 9

ADJOURNMENT Jr..¢

et g —w:‘:ensley, City Secretary &
I certify that the attached notice of meeting was posted 0 ie bulletin board at City of Montgoritery

City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas, on the 6" day of January 2017 at 2:10
o’clock p.m. I further certify that the following news media was notified of this meeting as stated
above: The Courier

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Please contact the
City Secretary’s office at 936-597-6434 for further information or for special accommodations.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM# 1

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department;:

Exhibits:, letter of request from Mrs.
Sims, copy of minutes from Planning
Prepared By: Jack Yates Commission

Date Prepared: December 29, 2016

Public Hearing regarding Mrs. Sims Bed and Breakfast Special Use Permit
application for 811 Caroline Street

This is a public hearing, an opportunity for the public to speak on the subject.
Letters have been sent to property owners within 200 feet, plus the notice was in
the newspaper and posted at City Hall,

There was one response to the posted notices and letters. Mrs. Norma Dean, a
neighbor, called to say that she had no problems with what Mrs. Sims is
proposing to do

Recommendation

Listen and consider to any comments.

Approved By

Department Manager Date:
City Administrator Jack Yates Date: December 29,
2016



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 1


Mary Eckhart Sims
811 Caroline St.
Montgomery, Texas 77356

(940) 839-5946

October 25, 2016

City of Montgomery
P.O. Box 708
Montgomery, Texas 77356

Re: Special Use Permit

To: Jack Yales, Council Members, and Planning and Zoning Commission

Dear Sirs/Madams:

I am hereby requesting that nty property, located at 811 Caroline Street, again be considered for a
Special Use Permit. I had to close The Caroline Iouse-A Bed and Brealfast in 2013 for personal
reasons, but would like permission to reopen. While open as a business for the seven years, we
provided wonderful lodging/accommodations to several hundred visitors to our area.

Enclosed is Check #1270 in the amount of $500 for various fees, My email address is
maryeckhari@@yaboo.com. Please let me know if you need any additional information.

Thank you in advance for considering this application. 1 look forward to reopening and again
becoming very active in our growing community.

Sincerely,

Mary FHckhart Sims




PLANNING COMMISSION ITEM' . REGARDING
SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR SIMS AT 811 CAROLINE ST.
AT DECEMBER 27, 2016 MEETING

1, Public Hearing

Public hearing regarding granting of a Special Use Permit to Mary Eckhart
Sims to operate a Bed and Breakfast at 811 Caroline Street,

Chairman Cox called the public hearing® 49 order at 6:01 p.m.

Jack Yates gave a brief report that one response had been received from the
letters sent to the neighboring property owners. He said one response from
Andy and Norma Dean who said that they had no problem with what Mary
Simmons is proposing to do.

The Public hearing was closed by the Chairman Cox at 6:03 p.m.

5.Consideration and possible action regarding granting of a Special Use
Permit to Mary Ecichart Sims to operate a Bed and Breakfast at 811
Caroline Street

Jack Yates said that Mrs. Sims had the same use of this property from 2007
to 2014. Mrs. Sims was present. Mr. Simpson asked about off-street parking
and her answer was that they were eight off-street parking spaces. Mr.
Waddell asked about the recent changes to the building and the answer was
that after renting the house for several years that the recent work were
cosmetic but nothing structurally changed in the building,

Motion by Mr. Simpson, seconded by Mr, Waddell to recommend approval
for the Special Use Permit at 811 Caroline Street to Mary Sims. All in favor.




MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARINGS and REGULAR MEETING

December 13, 2016

MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6;03 p.m.

Present: Kirk Jones
Jon Bickford
John Champagne, Jr.
T.J. Wilkerson
Rebecca Huss
Dave McCorquodale
Absent:

Also Present: Jack Yates
Larry Foerster
Nelson Cox
Jennifer Brown

Jeffrey Waddell

INVOCATION

T.J. Wilkerson gave the invocation.

Mayor
City Council Place # 1
City Council Place # 2

City Council Place # 3
City Council Place # 4
City Council Place # 5

City Administrator

City Attorney

Chairman, Capital Improvement Advisory Committee
Secretary, Capital Improvement Advisory Committee

Member, Capital Improvement Advisory Committee

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARING:

Convene into Public Hearing:

Mayor Jones convened into the Public Hearing at 6:04 p.m. Mayor Jones asked Nelson Cox,

Chairman of the Montgomery Capital Improvements Advisory Committee to call his meeting to

order, so that they can conduct simultaneous Public Hearings,

ITEM# 2




Chairman Cox called their meeting to order at 6:04 p.m., and noted that they had three members, a

quorum, present, which included Jeffrey Waddell and Jennifer Brown.

l.

Receive report from the Montgomery Capital Improvements Advisory Committee

regarding Impact Fees: and

Nelson Cox, Chairman of the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee stated that the
Committee had reviewed the report and information, and they were recommending the

Impact Fee.

Regarding adoption of Impact Fees for Water and Wastewater for the City of

Montgomery, Texas, The amount of the proposed impact fee per service unit is

$4,045.00.

Mr. Glynn Fleming, City Engineer, stated that this was the culmination of the process
that City Council had asked them to undertake approximately 6-8 months ago. Mr.
Fleming said that as they look at the City of Montgomery, they know that there is a lot
of commercial and residential growth that they are starting to see around town. Mr,
Fleming said that there are some shortcomings and needs in the water and wastewater
systems in order to be able to serve those developments. Mr. Fleming said that the idea
behind the impact fee is that it is a way to shift the financial burden of providing that
infrastructure, to the actual new growth that it will serve, as opposed to trying to place

that burden on existing customers and/or existing residents of the City.

Mr. Fleming said that going back two years ago when they first came on as the City
Engineer, they took a long look at the current status of the City’s water and wastewater
infrastructure. They identified a lengthy list of items that needed to be done, which
totaled $25-$30 million dollars’ worth of work, to be implemented over the next 10-15
years, Mr. Fleming said that some of that work needs to be done strictly to serve the new
growth, and some of the work is for both new and existing customers. Mr. Fleming said
that the Impact Fee Study takes a look at all of those projects and divvies up what needs

to be done to serve the new customers,

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 2




Mr. Fleming said that the City Council appointed a Capital Improvement Advisory
Committee that is made up of existing residents and business people from the City. The
Committee listened to what they had to say about this information and went through each
of the projects individually to make recommendations to City Council about the proposed

impact fee.

Mr, Fleming advised that one month ago there was a Public Hearing to discuss Land Use
Assumptions and to settle on Capital Projects and Plan that the Impact Fees are predicated
upon. Mr, Fleming said that tonight they would consider adoption of the actual impact

fee,

Mayor Jones asked if a service unit described is the equivalent of a 5/8°s inch water
meter. Mr. Fleming said that the Texas Local Government Code mandates how they go
about the process, with specific guidelines and terms for the process. Mr. Fleming said
that one of the terms that comes up a lot is a “service unit.” Mr. Fleming said that in
terms of this process a “service unit” amounts to one residential water meter, which the
City’s standard residential water meter is a 5/8 inch meter. Mayor Jones asked if they
would also take wastewater into consideration. Mr, Fleming said that was correct, and it

was broken out to show the assessments for just water or just wastewater projects.

Jon Bickford asked if that fee would apply to any permits. Mr. Fleming said that if the
City did elect to adopt the impact fees tonight, there would be a 12-month moratorium.
Rebecca Huss said that until that time, the City’s current fee structure would be what is
in place, Mr. Fleming said that the fee structure would remain the same. Mr. Fleming
said that it was important to remember that if the impact fee goes into effect, it would
only be for new growth that would come in next year and beyond within the City. Mr.
Fleming said that it would include new areas in the City and ETJ’s. There are some areas
in the City that will be excluded from impact fees based on prior development

agreements.

Mr. Yates asked how it would work if someone wanted to purchase taps prior to the end

of the 12-month period. Mr. Foerster said that the fee would not be effective until

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




December 13, 2017, and by law they can’t place a moratorium on them and refuse serving
them because they want them to pay the impact fee. Mr, Fleming said that was built into
the Government Code, where they will not allow the City to hold off until the time period

it up.

M. Fleming stated that the tap fee and impact fee were two separate issues. So if they
were both in place, they would both be assessed. Mr. Fleming said that the tap fee is a
way for the City to cover the costs for public works to physically go out and make the
tap connection to the City’s water and wastewater system. The tap fee is just to cover
the actual costs, so that fee will remain in place. The impact fee is an additional

assessment and is strictly to fund infrastructure needed for the new growth,

Rebecca Huss said that another thing that came up at the meetings and for the record, this
isn’t exactly a revenue bonanza that releases City Council from finding funds to do all
the infrastructure that is necessary. Rebecca Huss stated that the funds identified are not
100 percent recoverable, so there is a shortfall of $5-$10 million dollars just on that
amount, and then the recoverable amount itself is reduced by 50 percent due to state law,
unless they want to hire ten accountants to figure out the precise one, Rebecca Huss said
that the impact fee is necessary and tries to shift the burden to the people that are requiring
the new service, but it does not fix the looming amount of money that they need to come

up with to fund the projects.

Mr. Fleming said that it is important to say that when they first started talking about some
of the problems facing the City, the first place that this City Council looked at, to start
addressing that matter, was internally. Mr, Fleming said that they looked at operational
efficiency across the board. Mr. Fleming said that in the last two years the City has done
a tremendous amount of buttoning up their operations. They looked at water and sewer
rates, so they have taken some steps to address their shortcomings in the water and sewer
rates {0 help address some of the existing shortcomings for the people that are already
here. Mr. Fleming said that in terms of getting their own accountability up, to make sure
that they are not losing water and potential revenue, they have installed a brand new, state

of the art, automated metering system. Mr, Fleming said that with the new system they

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




should not be losing water. Mr. Fleming said that the City looked internally to correct all

issues and inefficiencies.

Reconvene into Regular Session:

Mayor Jones adjourned the Public Hearing at 6:16 p.m. and reconvened into Regular Session.

Chairman Cox then closed the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee Public Hearing at 6:16

p.m.

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council, Prior to

speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mavor. Council may not discuss or take any action

on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time

allowed per speaker may be limited.

Ms. Shirley Schneider spoke about the Christmas in Montgomery that took place last Saturday, and
said that it was bigger than ever. Ms. Schneider said that she wanted to thank all of the City Council
for all that they do throughout the year to make all the citizens happy. Ms. Schneider then thanked
the Police Chief and all the officer’s for their help during the Christmas Parade and at the funeral
home during the year. Ms. Schneider thanked City staff for their help during the season to get the
Community Center. Ms. Schneider said that the City has an excellent employee named Kimberly
Duckett, who went above and beyond to help her. Ms. Schneider said that the City has wonderful
staff. Ms. Schneider thanked the City for the new Christmas trees and additional decorations that
really added to the festivities and they received a lot of nice compliments. Ms, Schneider said that

people are already asking about next year.

Ms. Schneider said that she would like consideration to create more tourism in Montgomery, because
we are missing a lot of opportunities. The City needs a consulting person to come in and see what
Montgomery can do. This person should have good people communication skills, a lot of marketing

experience and a vast knowledge of tourism. Ms. Schneider wished the City a Merry Christmas.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5




CONSENT AGENDA:

3, Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearings and Repular Meeting held
on October 25, 2016, and Regular Meeting held on November 15, 2016,

4, Consideration and possible action regarding Cedar Crest Manufactured Home Park License
Renewal.
5. Consideration and possible action to regarding rescheduling a Public Hearing for a Special Use

Permit for Mary Eckhart Sims to open a Bed and Bieakfast operation at 811 Caroline Street,

Montgomery, originally scheduled to be held on December 13, 2016, to be held on January 10,
2017 at 6:00 p.m.

Rebecca Huss commented that she would like to see the visitor comments section of the
minutes abbreviated. Rebecca Huss said that the last two minutes were probably 12-15 pages
regarding comments. Rebecca Huss said that getting to the point would serve everyone well.

City Council concurred with summarizing the comments in the minutes.

Dave McCorquodale moved to approve the items on the consent agenda as presented. Jon

Bickford seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

6, Consideration and possible action on Department Reports,

A.  Administrator’s Report — Mr. Yates presented his report to City Council. Mr. Yates
said that the one thing that he wanted to highlight was working with the Grantworks
people and Mr, Fleming on Baja Street. Mr. Yates said that they also held a
neighborhood meeting of the north side residents to discuss the CDBG project, home
project possibilities and police visibility in the area. Mr. Yates said that the meeting

was well attended.

Jon Bickford asked for an update on the Kroger Store opening. Mr. Yates said that he
has had two different answers, but he would see what he could do to get that
information. Mr. Fleming said that he meets with the Kroger people weekly and right

now they are saying early to mid-April.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




Public Works Report — Mr. Mike Muckleroy presented his report to City Council, Mr,

Muckleroy advised that they had repaired a main line lead at 524 Simonton Street. Mr.
Muckleroy said the numbers for Fernland were 861 visitors and 41 tours.

Rebecca Huss said that she noticed that the west side of Flagship Boulevard the striping
had been done to provide a turn lane to the right, and left going west bound. Rebecca
Huss said that it works, and said that it was a job well done. Mr. Muckleroy said that
striping had actually been done a couple of months ago. Mr. Muckleroy said that once

the work was completed, he thought that they could expand the turn lane a little longer.

John Champagne asked about the culvert at the end of Baja and whether it had
collapsed. Mr. Muckleroy advised that when Montgomery County did the project two
years ago, they removed a crossover culvert and tried to make [00% percent of the
water flow to MLK on each side. Mr. Harris’ house at the end of Baja was still holding
quite a bit of water, so they put a culvert back across there so that it would carry some

of the water across, which seems to have worked,

Mayor Jones asked about the concrete work on Flagship Boulevard and whether they
were waiting for the funds from FEMA. Mr. Yates said that was correct. Mr.
Muckleroy said that they would coordinate that work when there was at ieast a couple
of weeks of no school, so they do not have the traffic congestion. John Champagne
asked if the holidays would be a good time to do the work. Mr. Muckleroy said it
would if they had the FEMA funds. John Champagne asked how much money they
were talking about receiving from FEMA. Mr. Yates said it was going to be $50,000
to $60,000 dollars. Mr. Muckleroy said that there was more work involved, because

they are talking about removing the median during the same project.

John Champagne asked whether it would impede the removal of the median by just
paving the area that needs to be paved. Mr. Fleming said that the idea was to avoid the
appearance of piece meal fashion that has been addressed over the years, so when the
FEMA funding comes through they would like to remove the paving in its entirety and
replace it back in its entirety. Mr. Fleming said the next time that school will be out

will be the end of the spring semester.,

12/13/16 Counci! Meeting Minutes - Page 7




Police Department Report — Chief Napolitano presented his report to City Council.

Chief Napolitano said that they had hired a new police officer, James Riley, who came
from Panorama, and he has 9 1/2 years of experience in law enforcement, and should
be on the streets next week. Chief Napolitano said that he would bring Officer Riley
in next month to introduce him to City Council. Chief Napolitano said that he wanted
to thank Ms. Schneider for all her cooperation on the parade, because the parade would
not get done without her efforts. Chief Napolitano also commented on Mr, Yates great
meeting with the residents on the north side, which he attended, and said that they will

work on some things to hopefully help them out.

Court Department Report — Court Administrator Becky Lehn presented her report to

City Council. Ms. Lehn said that warrant collection is at the highest it has ever been
during the month of November. Ms. Lehn said that the revenue collection is also at its
highest that she has seen in the last five years. Ms. Lehn also commented to Ms,
Schneider that she appreciated the wonderful complements about Mrs. Kimberly

Duckett, and said that she just received an award for customer service.

Utility/Development Report — Mrs. Ashley Slaughter, Utility Billing Clerk, presented

her report to City Council. Mrs. Slaughter said that there were 11 new water accounts
for the month that bring their total accounts to 561. There was one new residential
home and three new commercial building permits issued during the month.  Jon
Bickford asked where the new commercial businesses were located. Mrs, Slaughier

said that one was for Heritage Plaza.

Water Report — Mr. Mike Williams, Gulf Utilities, presented his report to City Council,
Mr. Williams said that they had very few district alerts during the month.

Mayor Jones asked about grease clogs in the lift stations. Mr. Williams advised that
Lift Station 3 had the pump clogged with debris, typically it is rags that are flushed into
the system. Jon Bickford said that the report stated that they conducted top cleanings
at lift stations showing grease build up in excess of 50 percent within the City. Mr.
Williams said that the grease that gets washed down into the system starts building up

and once you get to 50 percent you need to clean it out so that you do run the risk of

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 8




equipment not operating properly. Mayor Jones asked if they had to call someone in

to clean that out of the system. Mr, Williams advised that was correct.

Mayor Jones asked if there was a way to have the grease pass through and be collected
at the wastewater treatment plant. Mr. Williams said that you can’t really keep the
grease from floating up to the top of the water, and it can occur at any of the lift stations
because it depends on what people are flushing down the system, Mayor Jones asked
if the lift stations were only cleaned as needed. Mr. Williams said that on their routine
maintenance program they clean the lift stations semiannually, and as needed. Rebecca
Huss asked, for efficiency sake, if they cleaned Lift Station 3 would they clean the
other ones at the same time, Mr, Williams said that they would not have a vacuum
truck come out for just one lift station, they would get a survey of all the ones that need

to be done so they can try to get as many done in one trip.

Mr. Williams said that last month they had reported that they were trying to get a
temporary totalizer installed at the wastewater treatment plant to verify the flow of the
current totalizer. Mr. Williams said that a couple days after the meeting during the
weekend the temperature sensing module went out, so they flat lined the flow at the
sewer plant. Mr. Williams said that they were able to get a new unit for $3,485. Mr.
Williams said that when they looked at the old totalizer, in order to get it up and running
it would have required numerous upgrades due to the age of the unit, which would have
cost $3,400. Mr. Williams said that the existing totalizer was a unit that had a bunch
of different parts on it, but now they have a new unit that is very accurate. Mr. Williams
adviséd that since they have changed out the totalizer, they have seen a moderate
increase in the flow and they are looking at 130,000 gallons, which is approximately a

30% percent return,

Rebecca Huss asked if the City was in any risk of violation during the time the totalizer
was down. Mr. Williams said that they had done everything within TCEQ standards
and they have recorded everything daily, but he would check into the information

further to make sure that they were not in any violation with TCEQ,

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page §




Mr. Williams said that there were no excursions during the month and they were at
95% percent accountability. Mr. Williams said that they were still running Well No, 3
because of the shortage of the permit for Well No. 4, through the end of the calendar

year,

Mayor Jones asked about the status of the water reuse for the chlorination project. Mr,
Williams advised that last week the contractor came in and installed the skimmer basket
in the contact basin, Mr, Williams said that he also had the bottom of the contact basin
cleaned out at the same time that they had the lift stations cleaned. Mr. Williams said

that he thought that they were on track to have the project done by the end of the year.

John Champagne said that he remembered Mr. Williams stating that the chlorine levels
were checked daily. Mr. Williams said that was correct. John Champagne asked about
the City’s water system range levels and whether they were in the middle, high or low
side, Mr. Williams said that he would have to go back and look to find out exactly, but
the acceptable chlorine levels for groundwater levels are between .2 and 4.0, Mr.
Williams said that the City has been within the acceptable range because they monitor
that closely. Mayor Jones asked if the operating data was tighter than that, Mr,
Williams advised that it was tighter than that and said that he has advised the operators
that he wants to see a 2.0 at the water plant. Mr. Williams said that lowest reading he
has seen was a .79 for the far reaches. Mr. Williams said that the reading will drop
off, which is when you will start smelling the chlorine smell. Mr. Williams said that
what you are smelling is not actually the chlorine in the water, but the chlorine spent

that is out of the water and turns into gas.

Engineer’s Report — Mr. Fleming presented his report to City Council. Mr. Fleming

said that he had a couple updates on the public infrastructure projects. Mr. Fleming
said that Kroger has been on site and making good progress on the water and
wastewater construction coming down Gardner Drive, and they are beginning to do

some work on SH 105,

Mr. Fleming said that the other grant funded project to serve Pizza Shack, will advertise

for bids this Thursday, and come back to Council at the first meeting in January with

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10




the bid tabulation and recommendation for award of the bid. Mr. Fleming said that site
construction for Pizza Shack is currently underway, and the other retail center around
the corner broke ground last week. Mr. Fleming advised that the retail center would

be a 1,800 square foot commercial shell building.

Mr. Fleming said that regarding the bridge, the FEMA package submission will be
submitted before the end of the year, Mr. Fleming stated that they have plans to meet
with the upstream property owner, Mr. LeFevre, to discuss action on his property on

Monday, December 19, 2016.

Mr. Fleming said the City’s wastewater permit renewals have been submitted, with the
review time running approximately 4-6 months, Mr, Fleming advised that the Water
Development Board fund applications continue to be reviewed and he hopes to hear

from them sometime after the first of the year,

H.  Financial Report — Mr, Yates presented the summary repott, in the absence of Mrs.

Cathy Branco, financial consultant, to City Council. Mr. Yates advised that he thought
the City was doing fine because the only large expenditure that has been made so far
this year is the Public Works truck. Mr. Yates said that sales tax was down last month,
but was up this month about $30,000 dollars. Mr. Yates said that last month the State
took back $58,000 due to an overpayment. Mr. Yates said that the utility fund was also

doing well,

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Departmental Reports as presented. Dave McCorquodale

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
AMENDING ARTICLE III, "IMPACT FEES" OF CHAPTER 90 "UTILITIES" OF THE
CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ADOPTING NEW IMPACT FEES FOR WATER AND
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS THAT ARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO NEW
DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY'S PROPOSED WATER AND WASTEWATER IMPACT
FEE SERVICE AREA WITHIN THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY;
PROVIDING FOR IMPACT FEE COLLECTION AND ACCOUNTING FOR FEES AND

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




INTEREST; PROVIDING FOR IMPACT FEE WAIVERS: PROVIDING FOR SEMI-
ANNUAL REVIEW OF IMPACT FEES BY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ADVISORY
COMMITTEE; REPEALING CITY ORDINANCE NO. 2013-08 AND ALL ORDINANCES
IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; PROVIDING
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE _AFTER
PUBLICATION. |

John Champagne moved to approve the Ordinance as presented. Jon Bickford seconded the

motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones asked about when the impact fees are collected, and asked if they
would go into a separate fund and must be spent on specific things. Mr. Foerster said that was

correct.

Mr. Foerster stated, for the benefit of the public, this ordinance repeals and replaces an impact
fee ordinance that City Council passed in 2013, which was only for the northwest quadrant of
the City. Mr. Foerster said that he did not know if the City had really ever implemented that
impact fee program, but this will be City wide. Mr. Foerster said that there will need to be a
semiannual review by the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee, and then within at least
five years from now they will need to revisit the entire analysis of the impact fees. Mayor
Jones said that the other impact fee ordinance just never had anybody build in the zone so they
never got to use it. Dave McCorquodale asked whether it was on the outside of the loop, in
reference to the development that is going on out there on the interior side of the Lone Star
Parkway. Dave McCorquodale asked if they would fall under the existing impact fee
ordinance. Mayor Jones said that development might very well fall under the existing
ordinance. Dave McCorquodale said that for some reason he did not feel like it could go on
the outside of the loop there at SH 105, but he thought that it was on the inside, Dave
McCorquodale said that it would come down to whether or not that property was annexed into
the City and where the City limits fell. Mayor Jones said that they are in the City. Dave
McCorquodale said that it may be worth looking at that ordinance, with reference to them to
make sure that they were the only enes that built out there and were they subject to that impact

fee. Dave McCorquodale said that he did not know what process they did to get the taps.

Mayor Jones asked if staff understood what Dave McCorquodale was talking about. Mr.
Fleming said that he did understand and he had a couple of thoughts there. Mr. Fleming said

that, if memory served him correctly, the area identified was actually north of there, and was

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12




intended to address more potential industrial development period. Rebecca Huss said if anyone
in the next twelve months applies for a tap pays under our current fee schedule, if they fall
under the previous impact fee zone, would they pay under that, as opposed to not having to pay
anything. Rebecca Huss said that everyone would be under the current laws that they are under,
and if they pass this ordinance, it would repeal those rules. Mr. Foerster asked to clarify,
because that brings up a point that he had not thought of as they drafted the ordinance. Mr.
Foerster said that he was led to believe that there was no activity in the northwest quadrant of
the City, and he did not contemplate the fact that there might be some in the next twelve (12)
months. Mr. Foerster said that the ordinance, as it is written, effectively repeals the 2013
ordinance for impact fees, and to address that tonight they could make an amendment to the
ordinance, modifying it, to make the repealing effective in twelve (12) months from the date
of adoption. Mr. Foerster said that would need to be reflected in the minutes, and the change
could easily be made so that if there was development in the northwest quadrant of the City,

the City could still impose an impact fee for that quadrant for the next twelve (12) months.

Mr. Foerster said that he would suggest that, for the record, would be to entertain a motion to
amend the ordinance, which was just passed, with respect to Section 9 of that ordinance, so
that City Ordinance No, 2013-08 dated May 28, 2013, be repealed effective twelve (12) months
from the date of this ordinance. Mayor Jones asked to confirm whether John Champagne

wanted to amend his motion. John Champagne stated that he wanted to amend his motion.

John Champagne moved to amend his motion, as previously stated by the City Attorney, “to
amend the ordinance, which was just passed, with respect to Section 9 of that ordinance, so
that City Ordinance No. 2013-08 dated May 28, 2013, be repealed effective twelve (12) months
from the date of this ordinance.” Jon Bickford amended his second. John Champagne asked
the City Secretary to read the motion back. The City Secretary read the motion back, Mr.
Foerster advised that he would make the change to the ordinance and send it to the City

Secretary tomorrow. Jon Bickford said that was a good catch by Dave McCorquodale.
The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR
THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN
ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED THEREIN: PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR THE
VIOLATION THEREOF: PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13




CODE; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE:; AND PROVIDING
SUCH CODE AND THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON
PUBLICATION AS PROVIDED BY LAW,

Mr. Yates advised that this was the formal adoption of the City Code of Ordinances. Mr. Yates
advised that the City Attorney had prepared and approved the ordinance. Mr. Yates said that
the penalty language that is included in the ordinance is tracking Vernon’s Civil Statutes
54.001, which needs to be specifically listed in the ordinance. The City Attorney asked if the
Code Book had been received. The City Secretary advised that it had been received by the
City. Mr. Foerster said that the penalties are recognized according to what the violation might
be, and Mr, Carroll, Attorney with Municode recommended that penalty language be

incorporated in the ordinance,

Rebecca Huss moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, and include the penalty language

from VTCA Local Government Code 54,001, T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones said that he just wanted to say again, even though he mentioned it

last time, but City staff did a great job on this and it has been a long time coming. Mayor Jones

said special thanks to Susan Hensley, City Secretary.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding funding of East SH 105 water/sewer extension.

Mr. Yates said that this was a request from the Montgomery EDC (“MEDC?”), for City Council
to agree to their decision to use $195,000 from the MEDC funds to fund the project for the
water and sewer lines from SH 105 and Lone Star Parkway, down to Pizza Shack, if Pizza
Shack were not able to meet their grant requirements. Mr. Yates said that it appears that Pizza
Shack is making considerable progress and this won’t be necessary, but in case it is necessary,
the MEDC asked for approval for them to spend their funds to fund the entirety of the project,

if necessary.,

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




10.

It

Rebecca Huss asked if it was clear that this would be subject to pro rata reimbursement as
people buy on to the line. Mr, Yates said that was correct. Rebecca Huss said that MEDC
would get its money back if they have to spend the money. Mayor Jones said that was the way

that MEDC understood it. Mr. Yates said that was correct,

Jon Bickford moved to approve MEDC funding of east SH 105 water/sewer extension, as

presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Dave McCorquodale stepped out of the meeting at 7:02 p.m.

Consideration and possible action regarding City Sponsorship Letter for Heritage Place

Medical Center, Houston Street driveway permit.

Mr. Yates said that the applicant was not able to be at the meeting and has requested that this

item be postponed until the January 10, 2017 meeting.

John Champagne moved to table this item. Jon Bickford seconded the motion, the motion

carried unanimously. (4-0)

Dave McCorquodale returned to the meeting at 7:06 p.m.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
CALLING UPON THE TEXAS LEGISLATURE TO AMEND THE GOVERNING LAW OF
THE LONE STAR GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT TO PROVIDE FOR
THE DIRECT ELECTION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE LONE STAR GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT,

Mr. Yates advised that this resolution is being requested by the City of Conroe. Mr. Yates
included a copy of the Conroe resolution, which he felt made allegations that he did not think
the City of Montgomery was ready to make, so he included a second resolution that had that

language removed.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15




12,

Rebecca Huss said that she would like to offer a third option, to table this item, because she
did not feel that direct elections would solve any éf the problems that they are stating. John
Champagne stated that he was getting to the same mind set. Mr. Yates said that the third option
would be to do nothing. Mayor Jones said that one of the board members believes that it should
be an election. Rebecca Huss said that she would rather have the governing bodies elect the

representative.

After discussion, Rebecca Huss moved fo take no action on this item. John Champagne

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding voting for City Representative to the Lone Star

Groundwater Conservation District,

Mr. Yates said that this was a 4-year term on the board. Mr. Yates said that the present
representative, who is completing his 8" year, as the City’s representative, is Scott Weisinger.
Mr. Yates advised that the only other person who has presented themselves is Greg Smith, City
Administrator for the City of Shenandoah. Mr. Yates said that he and the Mayor had spoken
to Mr. Weisinger, and he assured them that he would be getting back to Council Meetings in
the future, if requested, because not hearing from Mr. Weisinger was one of Mr, Yates issues.
John Champagne confirmed that there were two options, Greg Smith and Scott Weisinger, Mr.
Foerster advised that the City of Shenandoah has a Joint GRP with the City of Panorama
Village. Jon Bickford asked where Panorama gets their water. Mr, Foerster advised they have

a Catahoula Water Well.

After discussion, Jon Bickford moved to nominate Greg Smith as our candidate. John

Champagne seconded the motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones said that before they vote on this matter, he has a very strong feeling
in the other direction. Mayor Jones said that he knew he did not get a vote, but on the other
hand, the Mayor is appointed to select this candidate, but he brought it to City Council to try
and convince them otherwise. Mayor Jones said that Scott Weisinger has been on there a long
time, and he is one of three members that buck the rest of the committee. Mayor Jones said

that Scott Weisinger has enormous experience in water, and his whole business is water wells.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 16




13.

Mayor Jones said that Greg Smith knows water to the extent of a City Administrator, but it is
not his life. Mayor Jones said that he thinks that Scott’s continued representation would be a
better choice. Jon Bickford asked if in the last 8-10 years whether they have seen anything
good come out of the Lone Star Conservation District. Mayor Jones said not much, because it
is usually a 6-3 vote. Rebecca Huss said that Mr, Yates notes said that Weisinger has been the

“3” on a lot of those votes. Mayor Jones said that was a good thing.

Mr, Foerster said that Scott Weisinger contacts him on a somewhat regular basis about issues
that are coming up with the Lone Star Groundswater Conservation District Board, and when it
is appropriate, he forwards them to the City Administrators of his cities, Mr. Foerster said that
Scott Weisinger has been keeping him apprised of some of the issues. Mr. Foerster said that
there is some controversy there, which they know that, and Scott is sensitive on the City’s
needs and brings them to the attention of the appropriate people, which has been his experience.

Rebecca Huss said that she would be comfortable reappointing Scott Weisinger, personally,
Jon Bickford rescinded his motion.

Rebecca Huss moved to support the reappoint of Scott Weisinger as the City representative.

Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of designating an engineering service

provider for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water

Revolving Loan Fund application and project related engineering services.

Mr. Yates advised that this selection process is required by the TWDB as part of their loan
approval process. Mr. Yates said that the recommendation is the result of a City Council
appointed Committee consisting of Rebecca Huss, TJ Wilkerson, Susan Hensley and himself,

soliciting RFP’s and interviewing prospective engineers.
The Committee interviewed two firms, Jones and Carter and AEI of Houston, Mr. Yates said

that the Committee is recommending Jones and Carter because of their experience with the

City in general, and specifically the current TWDB application process.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 17




14.

[5.

Rebecca Huss moved to select Jones and Carter as the engineer for the 2017 Texas Water
Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund application and
project related engineering services. John Champagne seconded the motion, the motion carried

unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of designating a Financial Advisor

service provider for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water

Revolving Loan Fund application and proiect related Financial Advisor services.

Mr. Yates advised that this is also the same selection process by the same Committee listed
under the previous item. Mr. Yates said that two submittals were received from U.S. Capital

Advisors and PFM of Houston.

M. Yates said that the Committee thought very well of PFM as an alternative to using Jim
Gilley. Ultimately, the Committee came to the recommendation of U.S. Capital Advisors as
the Financial Advisor based on their work on the application for TWDB funding and their

experience with the City in general, and specifically on the current applications.

John Champagne moved to select U.S. Capital Advisors as the Financial Advisor service
provider for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water
Revolving Loan Fund application and project related Financial Advisor services. Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of designating a Bond Counsel provider

for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water Revolving Loan

Fund application and project related Bond Counsel services.

Mr. Yates advised that the same process was followed for this item as the two previous items,
Mr. Yates said that the two firms that were interviewed were Sechrist and Duckers and

Bracewell Company.

Mr. Yates advised that Sechrist and Duckers is a small firm, consisting of two attorneys, which

have accomplished many borrowings, some with TWDB,

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 18




16.

The Bracewell Company is represented by Jonathan Fries, who has performed the role of bond
counsel on the last several borrowings by the City and has familiarity with the City’s legal

position, and worked on the application for TWDB funding.

Mr. Yates said that because of Bracewell’s experience with the City in general and specifically
in the current TWDB application process, the Committee recommends selecting Bracewell

Company as Bond Counsel.

Jon Bickford moved to approve selection of Bracewell Company as the Bond Counsel provider
for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water Revolving Loan
Fund application and project related Bond Counsel services. Dave McCorquodale seconded

the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval appointment of four (4) Directors on the

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation Board, whose 2-year term expires January

2017, currently served by: Kirk Jones, Randy Moravec, Bob Kerr and Andy Dill.

Mr. Yates advise that the Board consists of seven (7) members for two-year staggered terms.
At least three directors shall be persons who are not employees or member of the governing
body, and two members of the Board shall be members of City Council. Mr. Yates said that
all the directors shall be residents of the County, with the majority of the Board being residents

of the City.

Rebecca Huss said that her personal feeling is that if they have applicants who are residents of
the City of Montgomery, they should consider them, because there are three non-residents.
Rebecca Huss said that she knows Amy Brown, applicant, personally. Rebecca Huss said that
Amy Brown is a business woman that took an internet business and turned it info a brick and
mortar business, she is in the City and is not affiliated with either HMBA or the Chamber of
Commerce. Rebecca Huss said that Amy Brown has not obtained funds from MEDC in the
past, but she does have a lot of creative ideas and she would like to see more residents of the

City deciding how the MEDC funds are best spent for the City.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 19




John Champagne said that he would agree with Rebecca Huss, but he would just say from his
experience, the new members, and Bob Kerr being a resident, Kirk Jones has been forever,
John Champagne said that Randy Moravec is doing a lot of additional financial support and

direction for the Corporation. John Champagne said that these guys are really good.

Rebecca Huss said that she agreed with those three, but she thought of maybe swapping Amy
Brown for Andy Dill might be something that would accomplish the goal of City residents
determining how the money is spent without harming the good work that Randy Moravec has

done on the financial and organizational things.

Mayor Jones said that they will treat this item like an election. Mayor Jones said that they will

nominate people for positions, which they will number 1-4.

Nominations:;
Position 1:
Rebecca Huss nominated Amy Brown for Position 1.
No other nominations were submitted.
City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Amy Brown to the MEDC Board of

Directors.

Position 2:
Jon Bickford nominated Kirk Jones for Position 2,
No other nominations were submitted.
City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Kirk Jones to the MEDC Board of

Directors.

Position 3:
Jon Bickford nominated Bob Kerr for Posiﬁon 3.
No other nominations were submitted.
City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Bob Kerr to the MEDC Board of

Directors.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 20




17.

Position 4:
Rebecca Huss nominated Randy Moravec for Position 4.
No other nominations were submitted.
City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Randy Moravec to the MEDC Board

of Directors.

Mayor Jones stated for the record that the MEDC Board Members that will fill out the next

term are: Amy Brown, Kirk Jones, Bob Kerr and Randy Moravec,

Consider and take action on a resolution that authorizes submission of an application to the

Texas Department of Agriculture for a 2017-18 Texas Community Development Block Grant

Program — Community Development Fund grant of up to $350.,000 to construct waler, sewer,

street, and drainage system improvements in Baja Street target area and designates the City

Administrator as the City’s authorized signatory.

M, Yates said that this was a resolution needed to apply for the CDBG grant in the amount of
$350,000, and it also offers $17,500 as match money, which is not a requirement, but does get
extra points, Mr, Yates said that the funds needed for Baja Street will be first, which they
believe will be roughly $200,000, and the additional funds will be used either for drainage
improvements at the corner of MLK and Community Center Drive, or for waterline extending
down MLK and adding some fire hydrants, depending on how they work out the points on the
application. Mr. Yates said that the preference is to help the drainage at that intersection, but
you don’t get very many points for drainage. Mr. Yates said that the majority of the grant will

be water and sewer, and they might be able to squeeze in some drainage.

Rebecca Huss asked if the match money being only $17,500 and the rest of it being FEMA,

was that something that Grantworks came up with. Mr. Yates said that was correct.

Mr. Yates stated that due to an illness in the family, Mrs, Martha Drake with Grantworks, is

not here tonight.

Jon Bickford moved to adopt the Resolution that authorizes submission of an application to the

Texas Department of Agriculture for a 2017-18 Texas Community Development Block Grant

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 21




18.

Program — Community Development Fund grant of up to $350,000 to construct water, sewer,
street, and drainage system improvements in Baja Street target area and designates the City

Administrator as the City’s authorized signatory. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion.

Discussion: Rebecca Huss asked if they needed to specifically designate Mr. Yates as the

authorized signatory. Mr. Yates advised that was in the Resolution.
The motion carried unanimously, (5-0)

Consideration and possible action on adoption of a Citizen Participation Plan and Citizen

Complaint Procedures to be followed during implementation of Texas Community

Development Block Grant Program projects,

Mr. Yates advised that this is a requirement of the CDBG grant application process. Mr. Yates
said that the plan covers how complaints are handled, and that the City will assist groups that
might want to develop other proposals for CDBG grants, public hearing provisions and how
the public is notified of the process after a grant is received. Mr. Yates stated this was boiler

plate language,

Rebecca Huss moved to adopt a Citizen Participation Plan and Citizen Complaint Procedures
to be followed during implementation of Texas Community Development Block Grant
Program projects as presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried

unanimously. (5-0)

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or

for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the

qualifications in Sections 551.071{consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real

property), 551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 {personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation

regarding security devices), and 551,087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)

of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas. (No ftems at this time.)

12/13/16 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 22




COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about

a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy

or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or

decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting,

Rebecca Huss stated that she was wondering if either January or February, might be a good time to get
a status of financial update on the parks and the status of their arrangements with the City. Rebecca
Huss said that two or three of the parks have agreements signed with the City, but Cedar Brake Park is
still outstanding. Rebecca Huss said that City Council had discussed getting something every six
months. Jon Bickford said if the truth be told, it was every quarter. Rebecca Huss said that now might
be the time to get the information. Rebecca Huss said that she would rather have semi-annual reports

form the parks.
Jon Bickford asked that City Council request to be apprised of funding allocations from the

corporations, such as the 501(3)(c)’s, which are the park mentors, that are collecting donations, taking

tips and accepting money out of drop boxes, as to where those funds are going, very specifically.

ADJOURNMENT

Jon Bickford moved adjourn the meeting at 7:35p.m. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion, the motion

carried unanimously. (5-0)

Date Approved:

Submitted by?

Sysan Hensley, City\Secretar

Mayor Kirk Jones

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 23



Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT
Parentheses a *364 ITEM# 3

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount; N/A
Department:

Exhibits: Minutes of November 15%
presentation regarding Green Zone
Prepared By: Jack Yates Buildings project

Date Prepared: January 4, 2016

Request from Green Zone Veteran’s Support Group to lease city property to
build their buildings upon, with the structures moved away after completion-
Melanie Davis

Discussion

Ms. Davis gave a presentation regarding the Green Zone Housing project to the
Council in November, 2016. Mayor Jones told me today that she had come to
him with a proposal that they (the Green Zone board?) obtain a sub-lease for

the property that the city now leases across (west of) Jim’s Hardware store. The
purpose of the lease would be to create a public awareness campaign by actually
constructing the home on that site, so that the public could see the building and
that , with volunteers, over the course of 2 to 3 months the building/home would
be built, then hauled away on skids to its permanent location. The permanent
location would not necessarily be in Montgomery,

The city, I have been told but have not researched myself, has a lease on the
property north of the Sewing business. I thought that the city owned that property
as an old, unused street right-of-way. So, I do not know the boundaries of the
property that the city may have available for Green Zone to use. The property
under city control should be researched and determined if the Council is inclined
to make this arrangement.

Not to say all of the following cannot be worked out but----

My questions would be how would the property be maintained during
construction of the new home, where/how would construction materials be stored
on the property ( in a storage building, under a tarp, open/just laying around)
how would access/parking be built to the property without a driveway now (a
gravel drive, no gravel — how would the driveway be removed after Green
Zone’s use), what is the appearance of the building during construction (is a




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

shell of a building delivered to the site or is it a skeleton of a frame that is built
around by volunteers), what signage do they want to display on the property to
advertise their purpose, what should be legally written into agreement/lease so
that the city has no responsibility/liability (does the city need a
liability/theft/damage Certificate of Insurance in amount of $1,000,000 as
financial protection) to , responsibility claims, should part of the agreement/lease
be a statement as to who pays attorney fees in case of suit brought against the
city, who cleans up the property at the end of the use and how long should the
agreement/lease term extend ( one six-month term to see how it goes, then
renewable after that?).

Since the city cannot give anything, but can contract for about anything so long
as there is consideration — how much/what service can the Green Zone people
provide the city in return for the use of the property?

Recommendation

Give instruction to the City Administrator as to the preparation of the sub-lease,
if you desire to agree to the proposal.

Approved By
City Administrator Jack Yates | Date: January 4, 2016 |




DISCUSSION
REGARDING GREEN ZONE BUILDINGS
PRESENTATION TO CITY COUNCIL
AT NOVEMBER 15, 2016 MEETING

Presentation and discussion regarding The Giving Trees Festival, which is raising

funds for the Green Zone Housing: Supporting our Homeless Veterans by Melanie

Davis, Vice Chairman and Campaign Director.

Ms. Melanie Davis made the presentation to City Council regarding The Giving
Trees Festival that is raising funds for the Green Zone Housing to support homeless
Veterans. This program gives Veterans the opportunity to be a project manager in
the construction of their own home. Ms. Davis showed how they take shipping
containers and transform them into homes for the Veterans, with the help of
volunteers. Ms. Davis said that they will unveil an example of what they homes
will look like at the Giving Trees Festival. Ms. Davis said they are hoping to
establish the first Green Zone Housing area in the City of Montgomery with one of

the homes on exhibit,

Mayor Jones said that they need a donation of trees for the auction at the Festival.
Mayor Jones and Judge Wayne Mack will be judges at the Festival judging the
trees. Ms., Davis said that she is getting a lot of support from the community and
the Chamber of Commerce. It is nice to see how the community will come together
to show our love and support for the Veterans, Ms. Davis said that once you do
this event, it becomes a tradition. Ms. Davis said that they have a moving company
that will come and pick up the donated trees. Ms. Davis asked about the signage

placement. Mayor Jones advised Ms. Davis to speak to Mr., Yates.




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Parentheses a 364 ITEM# 4
Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:
Prepared By: Jack Yates Exhibits:

Date Prepared: January 4, 2016

Presentation from Philip LeFevre regarding his plans for developing his property
and how that affects the city at large.

Discussion

Mr. LeFevre asked for time to make this presentation. As a large property owner
in the city I thought it worthwhile to hear his presentation. I estimate the time of
the presentation to be approximately 10 minutes. He gave a similar
presentation to the MEDC in April, 2016. Those minutes are attached.

Recommendation

Give consideration to his presentation

Approved By
City Administrator Jack Yates | Date: January 4, 2016 |

]




DISCUSSION OF MEDC
REGARDING PHILIP LeFEVRE
PRESENTATION TO MEDC
REGARDING DEVELOPMENT PLANS
AT APRIL 18, 2016 MEETING

Presentation by Philip LeFevre regarding his development plans and
issues - Mr. Philip LaFevre stated that he wanted to present his plans
in order to coordinate as much as possible with the MEDC. He went
on to say that Montgomery has an atmosphere that is unique and he
wants the MEDC to keep this quality of life. The Board generally said
they agreed with Mr. LaFevre about the quality-of-life issue. Mr.
Champagne said that the City Council, Planning Commission and
MEDC should agree with the vision of the high quality of life.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT
ITEM# 5

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:

Exhibits: copy of minutes from

Planning Commission, proposed
Prepared By: Jack Yates ordinance of Special Use Permit
Date Prepared: December 29, 2016

Mrs. Sims Bed and Breakfast Special Use Permit application for 811 Caroline
Street '

Mrs. Sims operated a bed-and-breakfast at 811 Caroline St. from 2007 to 2014,

then moved away. The property owners were within 200 feet of her property
were sent notices of this meeting,
No negative comment from the staff.

The special use permit ordinance is exactly the same, except for dates, as her
previous special use permit ordinance.

Recommendation

Approve the Special Use Permit Ordinance for the bed-and-breakfast operation
at 811 Caroline St. to Mrs. Mary Sims

A 0 3

Department Manager Date:

City Administrator Jack Yates Date: December 29,
2016




PLANNING COMMISSION ITEM' . \REGARDING
SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR SIMS AT 811 CAROLINE ST.
AT DECEMBER 27, 2016 MEETING

1.Public Hearing

Public hearing regarding granting of a Special Use Permit to Mary Eckhart
Sims to operate a Bed and Breakfast at 811 Caroline Street.

Chairman Cox called the public hearing ~ deorder at 6:01 p.m.

Jack Yates gave a brief report that one response had been received from the
letters sent to the neighboring property owners. He said one response from
Andy and Norma Dean who said that they had no problem with what Mary
Simmons is proposing to do.

The Public hearing was closed by the Chairman Cox at 6:03 p.m.

5.Consideration and possible action regarding granting of a Special Use
Permit to Mary Eckhart Sims to operate a Bed and Breakfast at 811
Caroline Street

Jack Yates said that Mrs. Sims had the same use of this property from 2007
to 2014. Mrs. Sims was present. Mr. Simpson asked about off-street parking
and her answer was that they were eight off-street parking spaces. Mr.
Waddell asked about the recent changes to the building and the answer was
that after renting the house for several years that the recent work were
cosmetic but nothing structurally changed in the building.

Motion by Mr. Simpson, seconded by Mr. Waddell to recommend approval
for the Special Use Permit at 811 Caroline Street to Mary Sims. All in favor.




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OFTHE CITY OFMONTGOMERY, TEXAS, GRANTING
A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO MARY ECKHART SIMS FOR A BED AND
BREAKFAST USE OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 811 CAROLINE
STREET, MONTGOMERY, TEXAS 77356; AUTHORIZING THE USE OF
THE PROPERTY AS A BED AND BREAKFAST; IMPOSING CERTAIN
CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
AND EFFECTIVE DATT,

WHEREAS, the City of Montgomery has received a request from Mary Eckhart Sims for a
special use permit pursuant to Section 98-33 of the Code of Ordinances ofthe City of Montgomery,
Texas, authorizing the maintenance and use of a portion of the herein below referenced real property
(the "Property") as a bed and breakfast; and

WHEREAS, the matter was referred to the City of Montgomery Planning and Zoning
Commission for consideration and recommendation, and the Planning and Zoning Commission, after
due notice and public hearing, did consider and make a recommendation on the request for the
special use permit, as provided by Section 98-33 (a) of the Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the City Secretary caused to be issued and published the notices of public
hearing required by the City of Montgomery Zoning Ordinance and laws of the State of Texas
applicable thereto; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, pursuant to such notices, held its public hearing and heard all
persons wishing to be heard both for and against the proposed special use permit, on the day of
BPecember, 2016; and -

WHEREAS, the City Council, after determining that all legal requitements of notice and
hearing have been met, is of the opinion and finds that the requested special use of the Property is a
permitted use of the Property in the zoning district in which the Property is situated: and

WHEREAS, the City Council further finds that the granting of a use permit to the Mary
Eckhart Sims will not have an adverse effect on the City's comprehensive zoning plan or on the
character and development of the neighborhood in which the Property is situated;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, THAT:




SECTION 1. A special use permit is hereby granted to Mary Eckhart Sims for the purpose
of using the Property as a bed and breakfast,

SECTION 2. The granting of the special use permit is expressly conditioned upon the
premise that to overnight parking shall be permitted on any public street and on the condition that
the bed and breakfast project comply with any and all local, state and federal law.

SECTIONS, 1t is theintention ofthe City Council that this Ordinance, and every provision
thereof, shall be considered severable and the invalidity of any section, clause orprovision orpart

or portion of any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of any
other portion of this Qrdinance.

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of , 2016,

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

By:

Mayor Kirk Jones

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Larry Foerster, City Attorney




Gives five and 10 years targets of overall

Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT

ITEM# 6

Date: Amount;

Meeting | January 10,2017 Budgeted

N/A

Department:

W\en‘o ‘Fcom {‘n;‘}netf

oo i January 4, 2017
Date

Current City Code of

.| Water Conservation
| and Drought

--_r_;"rfr: - | Contingency Plan
| from City Code

| Proposed Water

-1 Conservation Plan,

- .| with Appendixes “A”
| Utility Profile for

| | Retail Water
Suppliei‘, “B”

Ordinance Regarding

Current Water Rates,
“C” Proposed

| Ordinance Adopting

o f}f_ a Water
- .| Conservation Plan.

Appendix “D” letter
from City Engineer

| to San Jacinto River

‘| Authority informing
.| them of the adoption
| of the plan

Prepared: Eﬁhibits: S

the loan that is now pending TWDB approval,

Consideration of adoption of Water Conservation Plan for the city. This
Plan is required by the Texas Water Development Board in order to receive




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

The proposed Water Conservation Plan is based on TWDB requirements,
The Plan was written by Glynn Fleming of the Jones/Carter Engineering
firm.

Section 3 of the Plan gives S and 10 year targets of overall (not just during a
drought) water consumption from present 311 gallons per capita per day
(gped) to 302 in 2021 and to 269 by 2026. For residents — from present 207
gped two 184 in 2021 and 165 by 2026. Water loss also has a goal from the
present 6.0% to 5.4% in 2021 and 5.2% in 2026.

All of this reduction will be accomplished by raising public awareness, a
showerhead and aerator retrofit program, water — efficient toilet
replacement program, customer water audits and landscape management
education. ‘

The goal is to reduce per capita per day consumption by 1% per year, with
periodic evaluations. Pages 5 and 6 of the Plan give details to the methods of
attaining conservation goals.

Appendix “A” js a snapshot of the city’s current water usage.

Appendix “B” is a copy of the current water/sewer rate ordinance passed in
September 2016.

Appendix “C” is the proposed ordinance adopting the proposed Water
Conservation Plan for the city of Montgomery.

Appendix “D” is a letter to the SJR letting them know of the city’s
conservation goals.

The conservation goals are goals only and have no effect on future funding
from TWDB, or, if not met, have any negative ramifications.

The existing Water Conservation and Drought Contingency Plan in the city
code is written for use as a regulatory guideline to manage water use during
time of drought or lack of water supply — — none of which is provided in the
proposed TWDB driven Water Conservation Plan. There is no need to
amend, nor delete, the existing Drought Contingency Plan. Each Plan has its
separate direction with no overlapping of wording/purposes.




Recommendation

Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Adopt the Ordinance and Water Conservation Plan as submitted.

Approved By

D.ep.a 'r"tm'ent_. Date:

Manager -

City | i | Jack Yates Date: January 4, 2017
Administrator '




8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200

The Woodlands, Texas 77381-4241

JONES|ICARTER Tel: 281.363.4039
Fax: 281.363.3459

WVVW.jGI1BSC8FIEF'.EDﬂ1

January 5, 2017

The Honarable Mayor and City Council
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77316

Re: Adoption of Water Conservation Plan
Dear Mayor and Council:

Over the last several months we have briefed you on the City’s pursuit of loan monies from the Texas
Water Development Board (the “TWDB"). Recall, applications were first submitted in August and we
have since filled multiple requests from the various reviewing entities for additional information. In
order to fully comply with TWDB criteria for approval of the City’s applications you are being asked to
adopt a Water Conservation Plan, the purpose of which is to maximize efficiency within your water
system operation. This plan represents a combination of strategies for reducing the consumption of
water, reducing the loss or waste of water, improving or maintaining efficiency in the use of water, and
increasing recycling and reuse of water as the City’s population and water consumption grow due to
new development. It contains recommended best management practice measures aimed at meeting the
targets and goals identified within the plan. While there is no obligation on behalf of the City to realize
the goals contained within the plan, adoption is a requirement of TWBD in order to receive loan
approval, and we recommend it be maintained and updated on a biennial basis in order to easily
facilitate future applications to the TWDB.

Enclosed in your meeting packets you will find a draft copy of the plan as well as an ordinance prepared
by your City Attorney which formally adopts the plan. As always, should you have any questions or need
any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact Glynn Fleming or myself.

Sincerely,

Ed Shackelford, PE
Engineer for the City

EHS/gef:Ir2
P:\PROJECTS\W5841 - City of Montgomery\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\2017\Letters\MEMO to Council RE Adoption of Water
Conservation Plan.doc

Enc:  N/A

cc: The Planning and Zoning Commission — The City of Montgomery
Mr. Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley — City of Montgomery, City Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler & Creighton, LLP, City Attorney

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No, 10046108



WATER CONSERVATION PLAN
FOR
CITY OF MONTGOMERY
IN
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

December 2016
Public Water Supply ldentification Number: 1700186/1700022
Regional Water Planning Group H




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.
Section One - INtroduction and PUFPOSE ......ccevv et 3
Section Two - Utility Profile 3
Section Three — Conservation Goals
3.1 Five-year and Ten-year Targets ....vuevenireinnnns 4
3.25chedule. s 5
Section Four- Water Conservation Plan Elements
4.1 Master Metering of Water Wells......... 5
4.2 Universal Metering of Customer and P
Meter Testing, Repair and Replacen{éﬁ 5
4.3 Determination and Control of Water Loss: 5
4.4 Program of Leak Detection 6
6
6
6
7
7
7

App dlxD Transmittal Letter o TWDB ReglonaIWater Planning Group




Section 1 — Introduction and Purpose

The City of Montgomery, Texas (the “City”) was chartered in 1837 and is centered at the junction of SH
105 and FM 149. According to the Texas Water Development Board {the “TWDB”) Region H Planning
Group, the City’s population is currently 722 with a projected population of 2,676 by 2020. This projected
population increase is due to rapid development occurring around the Lake Conroe area and throughout
Montgomery County. Significant levels of residential and commercial growth are now beginning within
the city limits, As such, the City recognizes the need to maximize the efficient use of its existing
water supply and treatment facilities, and herby adopts the following water conservation plan
for the purposes of identifying and establishing principals, pragtices, and standards to effectively
monitor and conserve the efficient use of available watef: LT}:ngIies and distribution system
capacity. This plan is prepared in general accordance with WDB’s Water Conservation Plan
requirements contained in Title 31, Part 10, Chapter 36' apter A, Division 2, Rule 363.15
of the Texas Administrative Code.

Section 2 — Utility Profile

ant uth west qifadrant of the C|ty and is directly
accessible from Stewart'S s located in the north central area of the City

and is directly,

Southwest areas of town."Water Well No. 3 (Jasper Aquifer) at Water Plant No. 3 is utilized
primarily when Well No. 4 is offfine or unable to meet peak demands. Water Use Data, Supply
System, and Wastewater System

Appendix A to this Water Conservation Plan is an evaluation of the City’s water and wastewater
system completed using the TWDB’s Utility Profile for Retail Water Suppliers (Form 1965-R). The
profile includes information regarding population, customer data, water use data, water supply
system information, and wastewater treatment system information.




Section 3 — Conservation Goals

3.1 Five-year and Ten-year Targets

The purpose of this Water Conservation Plan is to reduce long-term demand on limited water
resources by encouraging more efficient water use practices within the City. Table 1 below shows
historical and projected per capita municipal water use for the City in gallons per capita per day

{(gpcd).

Table 1. 5-Year and 10-Year Goals for Water Savings

Historic 5-yr
Average :
Total (gped) 311 |
Residential (gpcd) 207
Water Loss (gpcd) i
Water Loss (%)

1.10-yr Goal

which promote water conservation.

» Decrease residential water usage by encouraging the following programs:
Showerhead and aerator retrofit program

Water-efficient toilet replacement program

Customer Water Audits

Water-efficient clothes washer rebate program

Landscape Management Requirements

iR wne




3.2 Schedule

The TWDB State Water Conservation Implementation Task Force recommends that
municipalities set goals of reducing per capita consumption by 1% per year until such time as the
entity achieves a total gpcd of 140 or less. The goals proposed in this plan are structured so that
consumption is reduced by 1% each year, meeting the ultimate goal within ten years. The District
will periodically evaluate the plan in accordance with State and Federal regulations to determine
the extent, if any, that the plan needs modification.

Section 4 — Water Conservation Plan Elements

4.1 Master Metering of Water Wells

The City meters and records all water produced at:\ .Eater Plant Nos| 2 and 3ona dally basis. Each

public use to the water distribution sys“;‘ m b
proposed service connecti

4.3 Determination and Control of Water Loss

The goal of the City’s water loss control program is to maintain unaccounted for water loss at or
below 10% of water produced, on a monthly basis. In order to meet this goal, the City has
authorized the contract Utility Operator to prepare an annual water loss audit and report which
compares the amount of water produced and purchased versus the amount of known water
usage. The report assists in identifying actions the City may take to improve water accountability
and reduce water use in general.




4.4 Program of Leak Detection, Repair, and Water Loss Accounting

The City’s Public Works Department in conjunction with contract Utility Operations staff
administers a leak detection and repair program for the water distribution system. This program
includes visual inspections of system lines, leak repairs, investigation of abandoned or
unauthorized service connections, use of leak detection equipment, and meter testing and
accuracy checks.

4.5 Continuing Public Education and Information

/dstewater rate analysis was completed in September 2015 and
= e, which was adopted in September 2016, is formulated to
adequately recoup the cost; ervice and considers depreciation of large capital assets in order
to establish a reserve fund for major maintenance. Water rates are tiered in an increasing
structure to encourage conservation and discourage excessive use. A copy of the current water
and wastewater rate structure as adopted by the City Council is included as Appendix B.

4.7 Reservoir Systems Operation Plan

The City does not own any reservoirs within a common watershed or river basin.




4.8  Records Management System

In addition to the City’s existing Records Management Plan, the contract Utility Operator and the
contract Engineer administer and maintain a comprehensive cloud based systems which
accounts for water use characteristics throughout the water system and allows for the separation
of aggregate water delivery, sales, losses and water usage characteristics. These systems are
configured to allow determination of water sales and uses associated with the following
customer-specific categories: residential, commercial, public and institutional and industrial.

4.9 implementation and Enforcement

Appendix C contains a copy of the ordinance/resoluti
The resolution designates responsible officials or
conservation plan.

dopting this water conservation plan.
ents to impiement and enforce the water

4.10 Coordination with Regional Water Planning Group

Appendix D includes a copy of the letter sent to the ¢
this water conservation plan. >




i

t Texas Water 7=

N N
Uxtjg\érc:«ifno No. 1945 - R AQQi Y D [ A Development Board

Revised on: 4/1/14

UTILITY PROFILE FOR RETAIL WATER SUPPLIER

Fill out this form as completely as possible,
If a field does not apply to your entity, leave it blank.

CONTACT INFORMATION

Name of Utility: City of Montgomery

Public Water Supply identification Number (PWS ID}: 1700186/1700022

Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) Number:

Surface Water Right ID Number:

Wastewater ID Number: WQ0011521001/WQQ014737001

Glynn Fleming, PE

Project Engineer

Completed By: Title:
Address: 8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200 City: The Woodlandszm Code: 77381
Email: gfleming@jonescarter.com Telephone Number: 281-363-4039

Date: 16 Aug 2016

Regionail Water Planning Group: H Map

Groundwater Conservation District: 48 Map

Check all that apply:
D Received financial assistance of $500,000 or more from TWDB
,:l Have 3,300 or more retail connections

|:l Have a surface water right with TCEQ

Page 1 of 11




"

@(QQ u&éir Mﬂq

Uility Profile
TWEOR Form Na. 1945 -R Devefopment Board

Revised on: 4/1/14

Section | Utility Data

Texas Water 7=

A. Population and Service Area Data

1. Current service area size in square miles:
{Attach or email a copy of the service area map.)
2. Provide historical service area population for the previous five years, starting with the

most current year,

Istorical Populati arical Population -
. ServedBy . . ServedBy
* Retail Water Service ‘Wholesale Water Service. | .
722 0 722
719 0 719
710 0 710
695 0 695
686 0 686

3. Provide the projected service area population for the following decades.
d Pof . Projected Populatic
o Served ® oo ServedBy o ServedBy -
Retall Water Service - . | - Wholesale Water Service . - | - Wastewater Service .. -
2,676 0 2,676
4,985 0 4,985
6,185 0 6,185
7,393 0 7,393
8,625 0] 8,625

4.  Describe the source(s)/method(s) for estimating current and projected populations.

TWDB Region M Planning Group

Page 2 of 11




Uillity Profile
TWDB Form NoL 19465 -R
Revised o 4/1/14

B. System Input

ﬂ@wdw Y

Provide system input data for the previous five years.
Total System Input = Self-supplied + imported — Exported

"

Texas Water /
Development Board

o heeelmnone | B
: b | waterinGallons - |
2016 88,593,000 | 0 0 88,593,000 336
2015 82,310,000 0 0 82,310,000 314
2014 80,174,000 0 0 80,174,000 309
2013 75,581,000 0 0 75,581,000 298
2012 74,594,000 0 0 74,594,000 208
Historic 5- 80,250,400 0 0 80,250,400 311
year Average

C. Water Supply System (Attach description of water system)

1. Designed daily capacity of system

2. Storage Capacity:

567,568

gallons per day.

Elevated 0 gallons
Ground 520,000 gallons
3. List ali current water supply sources in gallons.
_ Water Supply Source - | SourceType® | TotalGallons .
Water Well No, 2-Jasper |Ground 225,000
Water Well No. 3-Jasper |Ground 300,000
Water Well No. 4-Catahoulal Ground 720,000
Choose One
Choose One
Choose One

*Setect one of the following source types: Surface water, Groundwater, or Contract

4, If surface water is a source type, do you recycle backwash to the head of the plant?
estimated gallons per day

Yes

(& No

Page3 of 11




A QQ“‘( R Texas Water 7=

Utilily Profile Devefopment Board

TWDE Form No. 1965 - R
Revised on: 4/1/14

D.  Projected Demands

1. Estimate the water supply requirements for the next ten years using population
trends, historical water use, economic growth, etc,

s Year o .ooool 00 Cpopulation: - | Water.Demands (gallons)
2017 714 82,000,000
2018 1,204 138,274,509
2019 1,694 194,549,019
2020 2,194 250,823,529
2021 2,674 307,088,039
2022 3,164 363,372,549
2023 3,654 419,647,058
2024 4,144 475,921,568
2025 4,634 532,196,078
2026 5,124 644,745,098

2, Describe sources of data and how projected water demands were determined.

Attach additional sheets if necessary,

Population projections based upon TWDB Region H Planning Group. Water demands projections
based from current historical data.

Page 4 of 11




Frgpertiv " A" Texas Water ==

UiiEly Profile Devetopment Board

TWDE Form N, 1945 - R
Revised o 4/1/14

E. High Volume Customers

1. List the annual water use, in gallons, for the five highest volume RETAIL customers. Select
one of the following water use categories to describe the customer; choose Residential,
Industrial, Commercial, Institutional, or Agricultural,

_ RewilCustomer [ WaterUseCatogory” | e
Town Creek Apartments Residential Treated
Montgomery ISD {irrigation} | Agricuitural 3,612,000| Treated
Mantgomery ISD Institutional 3,047,000| Treated

Town Creek Apartments (irrigatii| Agricultural 2,139,000| Treated
Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant | Institutional 2,117,000| Treated

*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use,

2, If applicable, list the annual water use for the five highest volume WHOLESALE
customers. Select one of the foliowing water use categories to describe the customer;
choose Municipal, Industrial, Commercial, Institutional, or Agricultural,

Choose Cne Choose One
Choose One Choose One
Choose One Choose One
Choose One Choose One
Choose One Choose One

*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.

F. Utility Data Comment Section
Provide additional comments about utility data below,

The City currently has approximately 300 singie family lots which are platted but undeveloped.

Page 50f 11




Uttty Profile

TWDB Form Mo, 19465 - R

Revised on: 4/1/14

A. Retail Connections

Aggectiz "N

Texas Water 7=

Development Board

Section lI: System Data

1. List the active retail connections by major water use category.,
e L T D Active Retail Connections S
- WaterUse Category™. - - “Metered - | Unmetered | * " Total ... | -Percent of Total -
S ot Connections | - Connections
Residential — Single Family 407 407 70%
Residential — Multi-family (units) 0 0%
industrial 0 0%
Commercial 91 91 16%
Institutional 38 38 6%
Agricultural 49 49 8%
TOTAL 585 0 585

*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the anline Guidance and
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.

2.

List the net number of new retail connections by water use category for the
previous five years.

Water'-Use:C_a.t.eg.t;r\,f.’.‘.‘ - “Net Number of New Retail Connections .= " o
T 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Resu'ientlai - Single 52 43 34 21 o1

Family

Re51.dentaa.l - Multi- 0 0 0 0 0

family {units)

Industrial D 0 0 0 )

Commercial 24 31 32 22 19

Institutional 0 0 1 0 0

Agricultural 17 21 16 11 12
TOTAL 93 95 83 54 52

*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use,

Page 6 of 11




LHility Profdile
TWDE Form No, 1945-R
Revised on: 4/1/14

B. Accounting Data

Aqpeedic B

Texas Watar 7=
Development Board

For the previous five years, enter the number of gallons of RETAIL water provided in each

major water use category.

- Total Gallons of Retail Water = =~

 Woter Use Cotegory*

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Residential - Single Family 32,507,000 30,420,000 27,705,000 26,083,000 23,736,000
Residential — Multi-family
Industrial
Commercial 16,260,000 15,442,000 14,387,000 15,494,000 16,439,000
institutional 18,699,000 17,127,000 15,692,000 15,308,000 15,496,000
Agricultural 18,893,000 17,145,000 18,915,000 17,195,000 16,447,000

TOTAL 86,359,000 80,134,000 76,699,000 74,080,000 72,118,000

*For definitions on recommended customer categories for classifying customer water use, refer to the online Guidance and
Methodology for Reporting on Water Conservation and Water Use.

C. Residential Water Use
For the previous five years, enter the residential GPCD for single family and multi-family

units.
T " Residential GPCD 7 T s
Water Use Category™. S 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Residential - Single Family 204 212 204 202 213
Residential — Multi-family
D. Annual and Seasonal Water Use
1. For the previous five years, enter the gallons of treated water provided to RETAIL
customers.
“atonth " Total Gallons of Treated Retail Water R
A 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
January 6,509,000 5,143,000 5,405,000 4,658,000 4,537,000
February 7,614,000 4,028,000 4,375,000 4,083,000 4,156,000
March 6,160,000 6,761,000 4,396,000 5,084,000 4,548,000
April 7,066,000 5,503,000 7,633,000 6,081,000 5,607,000
May 9,390,000 6,459,000 7,097,000 6,852,000 6,967,000
June . 7,370,000 8,806,000 8,200,000 7,002,000 6,733,000
July e 8,704,000 6,503,000 6,010,000 6,627,000 6,305,000
August i 9,315,000 8,498,000 7,282,000 7,730,000 8,849,000
September 7,840,000 7,694,000 7,159,000 8,847,000 7,946,000
October 8,461,000 6,559,500 7,128,000 6,652,000 5,225,000
November 7,930,000 8,559,500 6,845,000 5,523,000 6,170,000
December 7,620,000 5,169,000 4,941,000 5,075,000
TOTAL 86,359,000 80,134,000 76,699,000 74,080,000 72,118,000

Page 7 of 11




{ f. (\ %’ ' )
Ulilty Profite A %Q L C( Deveio'[)%eaﬁtvégggg PP
TWDES Form Mo, 1965 -R
Revised on: 4/1/14
2. For the previous five years, enter the gallons of raw water provided to RETAIL
customers.
“Month R B ..~ Total Gallons of Raw Retaif Water © " L
SR 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
January
February
March
April
May
June.
me'_f:;
August 7o
September
October
November
December
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
3. Summary of seasonal and annual water use,.
Water Use ' ' N o Averageln ..
S 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 o Gallons
- SummerRetail | o5 350 000 | 23,607,000 21492,000] 21,350,000| 21,867.000] 2786800
(Treated + Raw) =
RRECENE Syr Average
TOTAL Retail 86,359,000 80,134,000| 76,699,000( 74,080,000 72,118,000, ' *078:000
{Treated + Raw)
Syr Average
E. Water Loss
Provide Water Loss data for the previous five years.
Water Loss GPCD = [Total Water Loss in Gallons + Permanent Population Served] + 365
Water Loss Percentage = [Total Water Loss + Total System Input] x 100
vear . “| ¢ TotalWaterloss - .. [~ Waterloss . | - - Waterloss. .
S in Gallons ~inGPCD as a Percentage .. -
2016 4,078,000 15 5%
20156 5,761,700 22 7%
2014 2,405,220 g 3%
2013 10,656,921 42 14%
2012 ] 0%
5-year average ‘ 4,580,368 18 6%

Page B of 11




oA r
D‘@@Ml‘* A Texas Water /%=

Hility Profiie
TWDB Form No, 1965 - R Develupment Board

Revised on 4/1/14

F. Peak Water Use

Provide the Average Daily Water Use and Peak Day Water Use for the previous five years.

Year | AverageDallyUse(gal) |  PeakDayUse(gal) | ' - Ratio(peak/avg)

2016 250,623 300,747 1.20
2015 225,506 254 821 1.13
2014 219,855 230,637 1.05
2013 207,071 252,626 1.22
2012 205,353 240,263 1.17

G.  Summary of Historic Water Use

WaterUse | \iiricsyearAverage | Percent of Connections | - Percent of Water Use
Residential SF 28,090,200 70% 0%
Residential MF 0 0% 0%
industrial 0 0% 0%
Commercial 15,604,400 16% 0%
Institutional 18,464,400 6% 0%
Agricultural 17,719,000 8% 0%

H. System Data Comment Section
Provide additional comments about system data below.

Page 9 of 11




\ r .
_— chw«c(?* A Texas Water 7=
JE”V\!I:[Z\’;.’: ;r;;f:)e No. 1945 R Development Board
Revised on: 4/1/14
Section I Wastewater System Data

If you do not provide wastewater system services then you have completed
the Utility Profile. Save and Print this form to submit with your Plan,
Continue with the Water Conservation Plan Checklist to complete your
Water Conservation Plan.

A.  Wastewater System Data (Attach a description of your wastewater system.)

. . 400,000
1. Design capacity of wastewater treatment plant{s):
gallons per day.
2. List the active wastewater connections by major water use category.
L L B " Active Wastewater Connections - -0 00
 Water Use Category* | ‘Metered ') Unmetered | ... Total ... Percent of Total.
R Tl Connections | -*‘Connections
Municipal 407 407 70%
Industrial 0 0%
Commercial 112 112 19%
Institutional 17 17 3%
Agricultural 49 49 8%
TOTAL 585 0 585
Z. What percent of water is serviced by the wastewater system? 39 %
3. For the previous five years, enter the number of gallons of wastewater that was
treated by the utility.
S ' Total Gallons of Treated Wastewater
Month .- -
T 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
January 2,136,000 1,869,000
February 1,343,000 1,698,000
March 2,494,000 2,929,000
April 2,678,000 2,497 000
May 3,409,000 4,296,000
Jjune 4,021,000 3,598,000
July 3,012,000 3,213,000
August 2,980,000 3,619,000
September 1,986,000 3,596,000
October 1,515,000 3,335,000
November 1,184,000 2,626,000
December 2,044,000
TOTAL 26,738,000 35,320,000 0 0

Page 10 of

it




P‘W““f o AT ‘ Texas Water 7=

Utility Pralite
TWDB Form No. 1945 - R Development Board
Revised an: 4/1/14
4, Can treated wastewater be substituted for potable water?
O Yes No
B. Reuse Data
1. Provide data on the types of recycling and reuse activities implemented during the

current reporting period.

On-site irrigation

Plant wash down
Chlorination/de-chlorination

industrial

Landscape irrigation {parks, golf courses)
Agricultural

Discharge to surface water

Evaparation pond

Other

ociolo|lo|lolo|lo|ola|all

TOTAL

C. Wastewater System Data Comment
Provide additional comments about wastewater system data below.

You have completed the Utllity Profile. Save and Print this form to submit with vour Plan, Continue with the Water
Conservation Plan Checklist to complete your Water Conservation Plan,

Page 11 of 11




1211412016 Ordinance No. 2016-18 | Cade of Ordinances | Monigomery, TX | Municode Library

AeCewpx "

the following Ordinance by passed:
ORDINANCE NO, 2016-18

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS, REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2011-22 AND ORDINANCES AMENDING
SAME, ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING NEW MONTHLY SERVICE RATES AND
CHARGES FOR WATER AND SEWER SERVICE FOR CONSUMERS INSIDE AND
OUTSIDE THE CITY PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 90 OF THE CODE OF QRDINANCES
OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS; PROVIDING AND ESTABLISHING THAT
AN AMOUNT BE COLLECTED TO OFFSET COSTS AND EXPENSES TO THE CITY
FOR COSTS AND EXPENSES THE CITY WILL INCUR FOR MEETING
GROUNDWATER REDUCTION REQUIREMENTS OF THE LONE STAR
GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT IN ADOPTING ITS JOINT
GROUNDWATER REDUCTION PLAN, SO THAT THESE EXPENSES MAY BE
PASSED ON TO CONSUMERS; DESCRIBING THE METHOD FOR CHARGES AND
BILLING; ESTABLISHING AN AMENDED SCHEDULE OF FEES, DEPOSITS,
RETURNED CHECKS, AND OTHER CHARGES REQUIRED BY CHAPTR 96 OF THE
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS; REPEALING
ALL ORDINANCE IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER PUBLICATION,

WHEREAS, the Chapter 90 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Montgomery, Texas,
authorizes City Council, by ordinance, to establish monthly service rates and charges for water and
sewer services inside and outside the City and to establish fees for inspections, tap fees, deposits,
returned checks, and other charges related to providing utilities; and

WHEREAS, to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Montgomery,
Texas, and to satisfy the requirement of State and Federal regulatory agencies, the monthly rates
and other charges for said water and sewer services should be increased; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, having previously considered a water and sewer rate study and
model prepared by the City Engineer, and receiving advice and input from the City Engineer and
City Staff, has defenmined appropriate rates and fee schedules for cerfain utility services based on
historical data and other factors related to the costs of providing such services; and

WHEREAS, the Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District has established a regulatory plan
to reduce groundwater production from certain aquifers located within Montgomery County,
Texas, by its establishment of regulatory deadlines subject to its enforcement; and

Page -1

hitps:/fwww.municode.comAibraryftx/montgomeryfordinances/code_of ordinances nodeld=796840 118




121412016

Ordinance No, 2016-18 | Code of Crdinances | Montgomery, TX | Muricode Library

B \Pw&r“‘- "G

WHEREAS, the City is mandated to comply with the Lone Star Groundwater Conservation
Distriet's regulatory deadlines, and as 2 result, has entered into a contract for groondwater
reduction planning with the Montgomery County Utility District No. 3 and Montgomery County
Utility District No. 4 (collectively the "MUDS") in order to comply with the requirements of the
Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District: and

WHEREAS, under said contract with the MUDS (the "Contract"), the City is required to pay an
amount equal to 80% of certain monthly pumpage fees, rates an charges that certain other large
volume groundwater users ("LVGU"), which have entered into a Contraet for Groundwater
Reduction Planning, Alternative Water Supply, and Related Goods and Service with the San
Jacinto River Authority (the "SJRA"), which are set in accordance with the STRA rate order (the
"SIRA Rate Order"); and

WHEREAS, the SJRA adopted an initial Rate Order thai imposed a pumpage fee to other
LVGU's and participants in said SIRA contracts of $0.50 per thousand gallons of water
consumed, and said rate is currently set at $2.50 per thousand gallons of water consumed; and

WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City and its customers that an
amount equal to the monthly pumpage fees, rates, and charges, and other anticipated penalty
expenses of complying with the Contract, be passed through to the individual water and sewer
customers inside and outside the City, on the basis of the amount of water consumed monthly by
each customer, as set out in the Contract in order to recover the City's additional costs associated
with the Contract or other expenses anticipated for groundwater reduction planting; and

WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is appropriate to repeal the existing Ordinance No. 2011-
22 passed on September 27, 2011, while concurrently creating this new Ordinance providing for
residential and commercial water and sewer rates and other charges.

WHEREAS, the City Secretary caused to be posted a notice of public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, pursuant to such notice, held its public hearing and heard all

persons wishing to be heard both for and against the proposed water and sewer rates and fee
schedule on the 13th day of September 2016;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MONTGOMERY, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. MONTHLY RATES FOR WATER SERVICE INSIDE AND OUTSIDE
CITY,

Monthly rates for water service inside and outside the city are found in the attached APPENDIX
"A" and are hereby adopted.

Page - 2

hitps:fiwww.m unicode.comAibrary/tx/montgomeryfordi nances/code_of ordinances?nodeld=796840

2/8




12/14/2016 Ordinance No, 2016-18 | Code of Ordinances | Monigomery, TX | Municode Library

P‘QQW{; 1—\‘%"

SECTION 2. FEES FOR GROUNDWATER REDUCTION PLANNING AND
CONTRACT PUMPAGE FEES, RATES, AND CHARGES,

In addition to the above rates in order to defray costs and expense of groundwater reduction
planning, an additional charge of $0.70 per thousand gallons of water consumed, shall be charged
to all water customers, both inside and outside the City. This charge may be adjusted from time to
time, and is based on anticipated groundwater reduction plan pumpage fees, rates, and charges to be
assessed the City pursuant to the Contract with the MUDS, or for other anticipated expense and
costs for the City's mandated groundwater reduction planning.

SECTION 3. MONTHLY RATES FOR SEWER SERVICE INSIDE AND OUTSIDE
CITY.

Monthly rates for sewer service inside and outside the city are found in the attached APPENDIX
"B" and are hereby adopted.

SECTION 4. DEPOSITS, RETURNED CHECK CHARGES, FEES FOR INSPECTIONS,
TAP FEES, AND OTHER CHARGES

The following schedule of charges required by Chapier 90 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Montgomery is as follows:

Deposits (Section 90-61)

Residential Consumers $125.00
Residential Renter/Lease Consumer $225.00
Commercial Consumers $250.00
Institutional Consmmers $250.00
Industrial Consumers $250.60
Application Fee for Service $306.00
Returned Check Charge (Section 50-12) $ 50.00
Discontinuation or Refund of Water Service
Fee for failure to pay (Section 98-68) $ 75.00
Discontinuation or Refund of Water Service
Fee upon request of consumer (Section 98-68) $ 35.00
Meter Tarn-oft Tun-On Fee (each time) $30.00
Sewer service tap inspection (Section 90-74(e)) $45.00

Page- 3

https:fwww, municode.comAibrary/tx/montgomery/ordinances/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=796840 38




121142018 Ordinance No. 2016-18 | Code of Ordinances | Menigomery, TX | Municode Library

vaQea(ﬁW v h

Monthly grease trap inspections (Section 90-80) $ 50.00
Customer service inspections (Section 90-81) $100.00
Lone Star Groundwater Pumpage Fee $  0.07 per 1,000 gallons of usage
Grounchvater Reduction Plan Fee % 1.65 per 1,000 gallons of usage

SECTION 5, Construction. This Ordinance shall not be construed se as to conflict with any
state or federal statute.

SECTION 6. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances, All provisions of the ordinances of the City of
Montgomery in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other
provisions of the Ordinances of the City of Montgomery not in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 7. Severability Clause. If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the application of same to any person or set of
cireumstances, shall for any reason be held fo be unconstitutional, void, or invalid or othenwise
unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions of this Ordinance
or their application to other sets of circumstances and to this end all provisions of this Ordinance
are declared to be severable.

SECTION 8. Texas Open Meetings Clause. It is hereby officially found and determined that
the meeting at which this Ordinance was considered was open to the public as required and that
the public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the
Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

SECTION 9. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective and be in full foree after
publication as required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13" day of September 2016.

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Larry L. Foerster, City Aftorney

Fage-4

hitps:fiwww.municode.com/fibrary/tvmeontgomery/ordi nances/code_of_ordinances?nodelds 796840 4/8




1214/2016

Ordinance No. 2016-18 | Code of Ordinances | Montgomery, TX | Municode Library

M@uf“* v

Monthly Utility Rates for the City of Montgomery as of 9/2016 (Yr 1)

Amount

Next 5,000 gallons (11-15)

Wntei Hatas - %I () ) _Amount
Residentiol Consumers Inside Ouiside
Code 100 Code 110
For the first 2,000 La_ﬁnns of _w:ste‘r usori iUp to First 2K-$16.00 Up to First 2K-520.00
Next 2, 97(7170 g,alluns -4 Next 2K-52.25 Next 2K-52.50
Nexl 2 000 gallons {5 - 6) Next 2K-52,75 Next 2K-§3,00
Next 2,000 gallons (7 - 8) Next 2K-$3.25 Next 2-53,50
Naxt 2,000 gailons (9 - 10) Next 2K-53.75 [Next 2K-54.00

Next 5K-54.25

Next 5,000 gallons {16 - 20

Next 5K-54.75

Next 5K-54,50

Next 5%-55.00

the rate per thausand pallons used

For waler used in excess of 20,000 gatlons, Over 20K-55.50 Over 20K-85.75

the rate per thousand gatlans used - '

Commereind Consumers )

A Codetzo | Code 130

For the first 2,000 gallons of water used Up 1o First 2K-519.50 Up to First 26-524.50
Mext 2,000 gallons (3 - 4) Next 2K-82.75 Next 2K-53.00

Next 2,000 gaflons (5 - 6) |Next 2k-83.25 Next 2K-$3,50

Next 2,000 galions {7 - 8} INext 2¢-$3.75 Next 2K-$4.00

Next 2,000 pallons {9 - 10) Next 2K-54.25 Next 21(-54.50

Next 5,000 gallons (11 - 15) Next 5K-54,75 Next 5K-$5.00

Next 5,000 gallons (16 - 20 _ [Next5K-55,25 _{Next 5K-35.50
'fi(r)fwwrziﬁur used in excess of 20,000 gadions, Over 20K-55.75 Over 20K-56.00

Institutlonal Constimers {Schools)

Next 4.: 000 gallons (56 - 100)

o ) ] Covle 140
the first 30,000 gafions of water used Up to First 30K-5396
xt 10,000 galions (31 - 40) L Next 10K-84,25 .
cht 10,000 gallons (41 - 50) Naxt 10¢-54 .50
Next 5 000 gallons (51 6ay Next SKSI55

Next 45K-$5.00

Next 10,000 galions {31 - 40) _
Next 10,000 gaflons (41 - 50) B

Next 10K-54,25

Next 10K-54.50

Next 5,000 gnll(m:] {51 - 55)
Moxt t]; (}00 p'llicms {56 - 100) _
For water used In oxcess of 100, 000 pal!ons the

Next 5K-54.75

For water used in exeess of 106,000 galions, the __|Gver 100K-$5.35

rate per thousand gallons used o

Mult-Family Consumers -
Code 102

For the Hrst 30,000 gallons of water used Up to First 30K-5500

Next 45K-55.00

Over 100K-55.50

rate par thousand gallons used

hitps:/www.municode.comAibrary/odmontgomerylordinances/code_of_ordinances ?nodeld=796840

5/8




12/14/2016 Ordinance No. 2016-18 | Code of Ordinances | Montgomery, TX | Municods Library

Deggend + VB

Monthly Utility Rates for the City of Montgomety as of 9/2016 (Yr 1)

Water fRates foomtinuad) : ~ Amount o

h'rigatiun Conswmers {mater less than 1 inch io size) Inside

V V _V . . . [P R— . Ca(fe ’105 -

For tha first 2,000 gqi!ons'of Watmf used | JUpto First 2K-$12.00 o n—___:_
Next 2,000 gallons (3 - 4) Next 2K-§2.50 -

Nexl 2,000 gallons {5 - 6} , Next 2K-$3,00 T
INext 2,000 gallons {7 - &) - Next 2K-$3.50 -
Next2,000gallons (9-10) .+ INext2€-$4.00

Next 5,000 gatlons (11 - 15) ; Next 5K-54.50

Noxt 5,000 gaflons (16-20) Next 5K-$5.00 o

For water used in excess of 20,000 gallons, the Over 20K-85,75

rate parr thosssand gallons used o
!fi'igﬂt:‘é:i Constmers (menrlmch arfmger in size)

o Code XXX ]

For the first 2,000 gallons of water used | Up to First 2K-625.00 ]
Next 2,000 pallons {3 - 4) ) | Next 2K-52,50 j

Next 2,000 gallons (5 - G) 1 INext 2k-83.00 -
Next 2,000 gallons (7 - 8} | Next 2K-§3,50

Next 2,000 gallons (9 - 10} Next 2K-54.00 B

Next 5,000 gallons {11 - 15)  Next 5K-54.50 -

Next 5,000 galions {16 - 20) , | [Next5k-$5.00 )
For water used in excess of 20,000 gallons, the Quer 20K-36.00

rate pet thousand gallons used e S
Industrial Consumers

Rates for this Class will be handled ph acase | o i

by crse b e Nandle I 3 . .

https:iwww.municode.com/library/ftx/mantgomerylordinancesfcode_of ordinances?Pnodeld=796840 6/8




Ordinance No, 2016-18 | Code of Ordinances | Montgomery, TX | Municode Library

Pogerdit “ e

Monthly Utility Rates for the City of Montgomery as of 9/2016 (Yr 1)

A fixed rate fee of

2400 o N Amount Amount
Rasidential Conswmers | T fside Coutside |
o B  Code o Code 110
For tha list 2,000 !_;g_;ll__q_lﬁs of water used Up to Flrst 2K-$12,50 Up to First 2K-816.00
Mext 2,000 gallons {3 - 4) Next 2K-52.25 Next 2K-52.50
Next 2,000 gaflons {5 - 6) Next 2K-92.75 Next 2K-33,00
Nex: 2,000 gallans {7 - B} Next 2K-$3.25 Next ZK-53.50
Next 2,000 gallons (9 - 10} Next 2K-$3.75 Next 2K-54.00
Hext 5,000 galtons (11 - 15) Next 5K-54.25 Maxt 5K-84.50
Next 5,000 gallons (16 - 20) Next 5K-54.75 Next 5K-$5.00
i?éu"\véier used In excess of 20,000 gallans, Quar 20K-85.50 Qver 20K-55.75
tie rate per thuusend gatons used o
Commurdal Consumers T T
- ' ) Coneler 1200 C Code 130
Tor the first 2,000 galtons of water used Up to First 2K-621.50 Up to First 2€-525.00
Mext 2,000 gallons (3-4) Next2K-$4.00 Next 2K-$4.25
pext 2,000 gallons {5 - G} Naxt 2K-34.25 Next 2K-$4.50
Moxi 2,000 gallons (7- 8} {Next 2K-54.50 Next 2K-64,75
Mext 2,000 galions (9 - 10) Next 2K-54.75 Next 2K-$5.00
Next 5,000 gallons (11 - 18) Next 5K-$5.00 Next 5K-$5.25
Next 5,000 galions {16 - 20) Next 5K-55.25 | Mext 5K-65.50
For water used in excess of 20,000 palions, ) |Over 20K-56.50 " [Over 20%-56.75
the: raty per thousand gallons used I
tastitutional Consumers {Schoeols) . T

' ' Corle 140

Flat rate - $150

Far the first 30,000 gatlons of water used
Iext 10,000 patlons {31 - 10)

Up to First 308-83.00]

Next 10K-64.25

Mext 10,000 paflons (41 - 50)

Mexl 5,000 gallons {51 - 55)

Mext 10K-54.50

Next 5K-$4.75

A (ixed rate fen ot

Next 45,000 galtons (56 - 100} PSSOV DS N .. [Next 45K-55.00

For waloer used i excess of 100,000 galloris, the _|Over 100K-$9.35

raie per thousand gatlons used i

@{ﬁ;ﬂimﬂy Consumars )
Code 102

[Fiat rate - 5200

Nexd 45,000 gallons {56 - 100)

for the first 30,000 gallons of water used 1 Up to First 30K-$3.00

Moxt 10,000 gallons (31-40) .| Mext 10K $4.25

Next 10,000 galtons (41 - 50) e |Next 10K-54,50

Hoxt 5000 smlone 51 591~ oS —

" [next 45K-35.00

For water Used In excess of 130,000 galions, the
race por thousand gallons vsed

Industriol Consumers

Rates for this Class will be hundieac;n_at_ case |

by case basls

Over 100K-59.50

hitps:/iwww.municode.com/ibrary/tv/montgomery/ordinances/code_of_ordinances?nodeld= 796840

78




Aggudit " B

Ordinance No. 2016-18 | Code of Ordinances [ Montgomery, TX | Municode Library

12/14/2016

000ss UOIIELSLY G0y 350218 AjzucA
RS _ ©ApFoi Bimpng aay 13BULEISIT)
00°0e% . 2Byl y351) PAUINISY)
O0'ES 23iuas 10f 3a] kn,auu.qun{m

334 UDjd UCIIONPaY JEIDMPUnDIS

284 JBILAPUNOIT ADIC BUCT

ar0szs TBUNSU0Y [B3enpu
J0'082S T Bunsuss [erenmney]
80795es ABWMSUOT [BOHIUNEES

O0'ETIS

TBUIASUST [enpueDisan

IBRGUY

susodag

FEEIPEETETIRE-REYeY

ST0Z/6 40 s2 AIWoBIUoN 40 AUD 185 §

818

796840

2 of ordinances?nodeld

hitps:/iwww.municode.com#ibrary/t/montgemerylordinances/cod



/-\Mamo{f‘ﬁ o

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS, ADOPTING A WATER CONSERVATION PLAN
FOR THE CITY; DESCRIBING THE PURPOSE OF THE
PLAN; PROVIDING WATER CONSERVATION GOALS
AND WATER CONSERVATION PLAN ELEMENTS;
PROVIDING REPEAL AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES;
PROVIDING TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE;
AND PROVIDING AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE
UPON APPROVAL.,

WHEREAS, the City of Montgomery, Texas is experiencing significant current and
projected residential and commercial growth; and

WHEREAS, as such, the City Council recognizes the need to maximize the efficient use
of its existing water supply and treatment facilities; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the attached Water Conservation Plan for
the City of Monigomery, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the Water Conservation Plan has been prepared in accordance with the Texas
Water Development Board’s Water Conservation Plan requirements contained in Title 31, Part 10,
Chapter 363, Subchapter A, Division 2, Rule 363.15 of the Texas Administration Code;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS:

SECTION I. FINDINGS OF FACT. Al of the above premises are hereby found to be true
and cotrect legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Montgomery and are
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.

SECTION I1. ADOPTION OF WATER CONSERVATION PLAN. The City Council
for the City of Montgomery, Texas, hereby adopts the Water Conservation Plan for the City of
Montgomery, Texas, which is attached and incorporated here as Exhibit “A.”

SECTION HI. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the
provisions of this Ordinance become effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and
provisions contained in this Ordinance are hereby repealed, but only to the extent of any such conflict.

SECTION IV. SEVERABILITY. If any provision, section, sentence, clauses or phrase of
this Ordinance or application of same to any persons or set of circumstances is for any reason held to
be unconstitutional, void, invalid, or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portion of this
Ordinance or its application to other persons or sets of circumstances shall not be affected hereby, it
being the intent of the City Council of the City of Montgomery in adopting, and the Mayor in
approving this Ordinance, that no portion hereof or provision or regulation contained herein shall




Prpd L

become inoperative or fail by reason of any unconstitutionality or invalidity of any portion, provisions
or regulation.

SECTION V., PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING. The City Council hereby officially
finds and determines that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as
required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required
by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. Notice was also provided as
required by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code.

SECTION VI, EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from
its date of approval.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this the day of January, 2017.

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Larry Foerster, City Attorney




/’W?%JI%“D/J

8701 New Trails Orive, Suite 2040

The Woodlands, Texas 77381-4241

JONES I CARTER Tel: 281,363.4038
Fax: 281.363.3459

www.jDnesharter.com

January 11, 2016

San Jacinto River Authority
Region H Planning Group
1577 Dam Site Road
Conroe, Texas 77304

Attn:  Mr. Mark Evans
Chair

Re: City of Montgomery
Water Conservation Plan

Mr. Evans:
Enclose please a copy of the newly adopted Water Conservation Plan for the City of Montgomery, Texas.
This Plans and a copy of the Ordinance adoptingthe plan {included as Appendix Dto the Plan} are

submitted inaccordance with the Texas Commissaon on Enwronmentai Quality Rules,

Should you have additional guestions or requnre additional mformatlon, please contact myselfor Mr,
Glynn Fleming, PE. ‘

Sincerely, =

,a//)/L/

" £d Shackelford, P.E.
Engineerforthe City

EHS/gef:lr2

C:\Users\GEF\Desktop\TWDB 12-15-16 Submissiom\City of Montgomery Water Conservation Plan\pdx, E-Letter to TWDB Regional Planning
Group.docx

Enclosures: Water Conservation Plan for City of Montgomery, Texas
cc/enc.: The Honorable Mayor and City Council - City of Montgomery
Mr. Jack Yates— City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley —City of Montgomery, City Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster—Darden, Fowler & Creighton, LLP, City Attorney

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No, F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveving Registration  No. 10046108




HH2017 Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances

DIVISION 4, - WATER CONSERVATION AND DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLANE]

Footnotes: § w
e {2)

State Law reference— Drought contingency plan required, V,T.C.A., Water Code § 11,1272,

Subdivision I. - In General

Sec. 90-1386, - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings ascribed to

them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Aesthetic water use means water use for ornamental or decorative purposes such as fountains,

reflecting pools, and water gardens.,

Commercial and institutional water use means water use which is integral to the operations of
commercial and nonprofit establishments and governmental entities such as retail establishments, hotels

and motels, restaurants, and office buildings,

Conservation means those practices, techniques, and technologies that reduce the consumption of
water, reduce the loss or waste of water, improve efficiency in the use of water or increase the recycling and

reuse of water so that a supply is conserved and made available for future or alternative uses,
Customer means any person using water supplied by the city.

Domestic water use means water use for personal needs or for household or sanitary purposes such as
drinking, bathing, heating, cooking, and sanitation, or for cleaning a residence, business, industry, or

institution.

Even-numbered address means a street address, box number, or rural postal route number ending in

02,4, 06, or "B," and locations without addresses.

Industrial water use means the use of water in processes designed to convert materials of lower value

into forms having greater usability and value.

Landscape irrigation use means water used for the irrigation and maintenance of landscaped areas,
whether publicly or privately owned, including residential and commercial lawns, gardens, golf courses,

parks, and rights-of-way and medians.

Non-essential water use means water uses that are not essential or required for the protection of

public, health, safety and welfare, including:

hitps Sfwww.municode.comfibrary/t/mentgom eryfcodeslcode_ef_ordinances?nodeld=COOR»_CHQDUT_ARTiIWASESE_DEV4WACODRCOF‘L 11




11472017

~ 1
Meontgomery, TX Code of Ordinances %‘IL\ YA‘ 1 w

(1) Irrigation of landscape areas, including parks, athletic fields, and golf courses, except as otherwise
provided under this division;

(2) Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat trailer, airplane or other vehicle;

(3) Use of water to wash down any sidewaiks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or
other hard-surfaced areas;

{(4) Use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire
protection;

(5) Flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street;

(6} Use of water to fill, refili, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools or Jacuzzi-type pools;

(7} Use of water in a fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes, except where necessary to
support aquatic life;

(8) Failure to repair a controllable leak within a reasonable period after having been given notice
directing the repair of such leak; and

{9) Use of water from hydrants for construction purposes or any other purposes other than

firefighting,

Odd-numbered address means a street address, box number, or rural postal route number ending in

EIT’II "3'" "5," |17'|| Or nglll

{Code 2002, 8 90-131; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(VI!), 3-19-2000)

Sec. 90-137. - Violations; enforcement; penalty.

(a)

(b}

(Q)

No person shall knowingly or intentionally allow the use of water from the city for residential,
commercial, industrial, agricultural, governmental, or any other purpose in a manner contrary to any
provision of this division, or in an amount in excess of that permitted by the drought response stage in
effect at the time pursuant to action taken by the mayor or his designee in accordance with provisions
of this division.

Any person who violates this division is guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction, shall be
punished as provided for in_section 1-13. If a person is convicted of three or more distinct violations of
this division, the mayor shall, upon due notice to the customer, be authorized to discontinue water
service to the premises where such violations occurred. Services discontinued under such
circumstances shall be restored only upon payment of a reconnection charge, hereby established by
the city council and kept on file in the city secretary's office, and any other costs incurred by the city in
discontinuing service. In addition, suitable assurance must be given to the mayor that the same action
shall not be repeated while the drought contingency plan is in effect, Compliance with this division may
aiso be sought through injunctive relief in the district court.

hitps://www.municode.com/fibrary/b/montgemeryicodesfcode_of « ordinancesodeld=COOR_CHI0UT_ARTIWASESE DIVAWACODRCORL

2




11412017 Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances 6 + 1}%'“7

Any person, including a person dlassified as a water customer of the city, in apparent control of the
property where a violation occurs or originates shall be presumed to be the violator, and proof that the
violation occurred on the person’s property shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the person

in apparent control of the property committed the violation, but any such person shall have the right to
show that he did not commit the violation. Parents shall be presumed to be responsible for violations of
their minor children, and proof that a violation committed by a child occurred on property within the
parents' control shall constitute a rebuttable presumption that the parent committed the violation, but
any such parent may be excused if he proves that he had previously directed the child not to use the
water as it was used in violation of this division, and that the parent could not have reasonably known

of the violation.

(d) Anyemployee of the city or police officer designated by the mayor may issue a citation to a person he
reasonably believes to be in violation of this division. The citation shall be prepared in duplicate and
shall contain the name and address of the alleged violator, if known, and the offense charged, and shall
direct him to appear in the municipal court. The alleged violator shall be served a copy of the citation.
Service of the citation shall be complete upon delivery of the citation to the alleged violator, to an agent
or employee of a violator, or to a person over 14 years of age who is a member of the violator's
immediate family or is a resident of the violator's residence. The alleged violator shall appear in
municipal court to enter a plea of guilty or not guilty for the violation of this division, If the alleged
violator fails to appear in municipal court, a warrant for his arrest may be issued. A summons to appear

may be issued in lieu of an arrest warrant.

(Code 2002, 8 90-132; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(X), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-138. - Applicability.

The provisions of this division shall apply to all persons, customers, and property utilizing water
provided by the city. The term "customer," as used in this division, includes individuals, corporations,

partnerships, associations, and all other legal entities,

{Code 2002, § 90-133; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(VI), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-139. - General policy; purpose and intent.

{a) Inorder to conserve the available water supply and protect the integrity of water supply facilities, with
particular regard for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection, and to protect and preserve
public heaith, welfare, and safety and minimize the adverse impacts of water supply shortage or other
water supply emergency conditions, the city hereby adopts the regulations and restrictions in this

division on the delivery and consumption of water.

(b) Water uses regulated or prohibited under this division are considered to be non-essential, and
continuation of such uses during times of water shortage or other emergency water supply conditions
is deemed to constitute a waste of water which subjects the offender to penalties as defined in_section

htps/Avww.municode.com/library/bdmontgom eryfeedes/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=C OOR_CHB0UT_ARTHWASESE_DN4WACODRCOPL I




Haf2017 Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances \_,\ W C{

90-137. g .(_'\b

(Code 2002, § 90-134; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(1), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-140. - Public involvement in preparation of plan.,

Opportunity for the public to provide input into the preparation of the drought contingency plan was
provided by the city by means of a public hearing held on September 13, 2000, as duly posted in accordance
with the Open Meetings Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code ch. 551,

(Code 2002, § 90-135; Ord. No. 2000-4, & 1(Il}, 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-141. - Public education and information.

The city will periodically provide the public with information about the drought contingency plan,
including information about the conditions under which each stage of the plan is to be initiated or
terminated and the drought response measures to be implemented in each stage. This information will be
provided by means of having the plan available for inspection at city hall, and the use of a press release.

(Code 2002, 8 90-136; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(ll}), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-142. - Coordination with regional water planning groups.

The service area of the city is located within the Houston Region (H), and the city has provided a copy of
the ordinance from which this division is derived to the Houston Region (H), c/o the San Jacinto River
Authority, P.O. Box 329, Conroe, Texas 77305-0329.

{Code 2002, § 90-137; Ord. No, 2000-4, § 1{IV), 9-19-2000)

Secs, 90-143—90-167. - Reserved,

Subdivision ll. - Administration

Sec. 90-168. - Initiation and termination of drought response measures.

The mayor or his designee is hereby authorized and directed to implement the applicable provisions of
this division upon determination that such implementation is necessary to protect public health, safety, and
welfare. The mayor or his designee shall have the authority to initiate or terminate drought or other water

supply emergency response measures as described in this division.

(Code 2002, 8 90-151; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(V), 9-19-2000)

hittps:/fwww.municode.com#ibrary/tx/m antgomeryfcodesicede_of ordinances?nodeld=COOR_CHI0UT_ARTIIWASESE_DIVAWACODRCOPL 411




11442017 Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances g -'L‘ )M *-.7

Sec. 90-169, - Variances,

{a) The mayor or his designee may, in writing, grant temporary variance for existing water uses otherwise
prohibited under this division if it is determined that failure to grant such variance would cause an
emergency condition adversely affecting health, sanitation, or fire protection for the public or the
person requesting such variance, and if one or more of the following conditions are met:

(1) Compliance with this division cannot be technically accomplished during the duration of the water
supply shortage or other condition for which the drought contingency plan is in effect.

(2} Alternative methods can be implemented which will achieve the same {evel of reduction in water
use.

(b} Persons requesting an exemption from the provisions of this division shall file a petition for variance
with the city within five days after the drought contingency plan or a particular drought response stage
has been invoked. All petitions for variances shall be reviewed by the mayor or his designee, and shall
include the following:

{1) The name, address, email address and telephone number of the petitioner.

(2) The purpose of water use.

(3) The specific provision of this division from which the petitioner is requesting relief.

(4) A detailed statement as to how the specific provision of this division adversely affects the
petitioner or what damage or harm will occur to the petitioner or others if the petitioner complies
with this division.

{5) A description of the relief requested.

(6) The period of time for which the variance is sought.

(7) Alternative water use restrictions or other measures the petitioner is taking, or proposes to take, to
meet the intent of this division and the compliance date.

(8) cher pertinent information.

(c) Variances granted by the city shall be subject to the following conditions, unless waived or modified by
the mayor or his designee:

(1) Variances granted shall include a timetable for compliance.

(2) Variances granted shall expire when the drought contingency plan is no longer in effect, unless the
petitioner has failed to meet specified requirements.

(d) No variance shall be retroactive or otherwise justify any violation of this division occurring prior to the
issuance of the variance.

(Code 2002, § 90-152; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(XI), 9-19-2000)
Secs, 90-170—90-191. - Reserved.

Subdivision Ill. - Drought Response Stages

https:/iwww.muricode.com/library/x/montgomery/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=COOR_CHI0UT_ART] IWASESE_DN4WACODRCOPL 511




Ha/2017

Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances

{,{_'\SXW?

Sec, 90-192, - Criteria for initiation and termination.

The mayor or his designee shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a weekly basis and

shall determine when conditions warrant initiation or termination of each stage of the drought contingency
plan, that is, when the specified triggers are reached. The triggering criteria described in this section are

based on total pumping capacity on a daily basis.

(1) Stage 1: Mild water shortage conditions.

a.

Requirements for initiation. Customers shall be requested to voluntarily conserve water and

adhere to the prescribed restrictions on certain water uses, defined in_section 90-194, when

total daily water demand equals or exceeds 75 percent of total daily pumping capacity.
Reguirements for termination. Stage 1 may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as

triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of five consecutive days.

{2) Stage Z2: Moderate water shortage conditions.

d,

Requirements for initiation. Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and
restrictions on certain non-essential water uses provided insection 90-195 when total daily
water demand equals or exceeds 80 percent of total daily pumping capacity.

Requirements for termination. Stage 2 may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as
triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of five consecutive days. Upon termination

of Stage 2, Stage 1 becomes operative.

(3) Stage 3: Severe water shortage conditions.

d,

Requirements for initiation. Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and
restrictions on certain non-essential water uses for Stage 3 when total daily water demand
equals or exceeds 85 percent of total daily pumping capacity.

Requirements for termination. Stage 3 may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as
triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of five consecutive days. Upon termination

of Stage 3, Stage 2 becomes operative.

(4) Stage 4. Critical water shortage conditions,

d,

Requirements for initiation. Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and
restrictions on certain non-essential water uses for Stage 4 when total daily water demand
equals or exceeds 90 percent of the total daily pumping capacity.

Requirements for termination. Stage 4 may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as
triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of five consecutive days. Upon termination

of Stage 4, Stage 3 becomes operative.

(5) Stage 5: Emergency water shortage conditions.

d.

hitps:/fwww.municode.comilibrary/bdmontgomeryfcodes/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=COOR_CHI0UT ARTHWASESE_DIVAWACODRCOPL

6/11




/412017

Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances
Requirements for initiation. Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and
restrictions for Stage 5 when the mayor or his designee determines that a water supply
emergency exists based on;
1. Major water line breaks, or pump or system failures, which cause unprecedented loss of

capability to provide water service; or

2. Natural or man-made contamination of the water supply source.
Requirements for termination. Stage 5 shall be rescinded and Stage 4 shall be operational
when all of the conditions listed as triggering events have ceased to exist for a period of two

consecutive days.

(Code 2002, § 90-171; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(VHI), 2-19-2000)

Sec. 90-193. - Notification requirements.

(a) The mayor or his designee shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a daily basis and,

in accordance with the triggering criteria set forth in_section 90-192, shall determine that a mild,

moderate, severe, critical, or emergency water shortage condition exists, and shall implement the

following notification procedures:

(1) Notification of the public. The mayor or his designee shall notify the public by means of;

a.

b.

Public service announcements.

Signs posted in public places,

(2) Additional notifications. The mayor or his designee shall notify directly, or cause to be notified

directly, the following individuals and entities:

a.
b.

C.

d.

The members of the city council.
The fire chief,

The Texas Natural Resources Conservation Commission (TNRCC), when mandatory restrictions

are imposed.

The superintendent of the Montgomery Independent School District.

(b} The drought contingency plan should specify direct notice only as appropriate to respective drought

stages.

{Code 2002, 8 90-172; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(IX), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-194, - Stage 1 response.

The response to Stage 1 (mild water shortage conditions) shall be as follows:

(1) Goal The goal Is to achieve a voluntary five percent reduction in daily water demand.

(2) Supply management measures. Routine flushing of fire hydrants shall be discontinued.

(3)

https /Avww.municode.com/library/tdmontgomery/eodesicode_of _ordi nances?nedetd=COOR_CH0UT_ARTIIWASESE_DIVAWACODRCOPL

7M




1/4£2017

S
Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances ‘?L'\ j

Voluntary water use restrictions, Water customers are requested to practice water conservation

and to minimize or discontinue water use for non-essential purposes. Qutdoor watering and

irrigation by customers should occur between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m. only.

(Code 2002, 8 90-173; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1{IX), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-195. - Stage 2 response.

The response to Stage 2 (moderate water shortage conditions) shall be as follows:;

(1) Goal. The goal is to achieve a five percent reduction in daily water demand,

(2) Suppfly management measures, All flushing of water mains shall be discontinued and use of non-

fire department tank trucks shall be discontinued.

(3) Water use restrictions. Under threat of penalty for violation, the following water use restrictions

shall apply to all persons:

a,

Irrigation of landscaped areas with hose-end sprinklers or automatic irrigation systems shall be
limited to Sundays and Thursdays for customers with a street address ending in an even
number (0, 2, 4, 6 or 8), and Saturdays and Wednesdays for water customers with a street
address ending in an odd number (1, 3, 5, 7 or 9), and irrigation of landscaped areas is further
limited to the hours between 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00

midnight on designated watering days. However, irrigation of landscaped areas is permitted at -

any time if it is by means of a handheld hose, a faucet-filled bucket or a watering can of five
gallons or less, or a drip irrigation system.

Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is
prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00
a.m, and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. Such washing, when allowed, shall be done
with a handheld bucket or a handheld hose equipped with a positive shutoff nozzle for quick
rinses. Vehicle washing may be done at any time on the immediate premises of a commercial
carwash or commercial service station. Further, such washing may be exempted from these
regulations if the health, safety, and welfare of the public is contingent upon frequent vehicle
cleansing of such garbage trucks and vehicles used to transport food and perishables.

Use of water to fill, refill, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools, wading pools, or
Jacuzzi-type pools is prohibited except on designated watering days between the hours of
12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight.

Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited
except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped

with a recirculation system,

hitps:/Awww.municode.comfi brarylbdmontgomerylcodeslcode_of__ordinances?nodeid=COOR_CHQGUT_ARTHWASESE_DIV4WACOD RCOPL

8M1




14/2017

. Ly
Montgomery, TX Code of Ordinances Y—\

Use of water from hydrants shall be limited to firefighting, related activities, or other activities

necessary to maintain public health, safety, and welfare, except that use of water from

designated fire hydrants for construction purposes may be allowed under special permit from

the city.

Use of water for the irrigation of golf course greens, tees, and fairways is prohibited except on

designated watering days between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between

8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight. However, if the golf course utilizes a water source other than

that provided by the city, the facility shall not be subject to these regulations.

All restaurants are prohibited from serving water to patrons except upon request of the

patron,

The following uses of water are defined as non-essential and are prohibited:

1. Washdown of any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or other
hard-surfaced areas;

2. Use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire
protection;

3. Use of water for dust control;

4. Flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street; and
Failure to repair a controllable leak within a reasonable period after having been given

notice directing the repair of such leak.

{Code 2002, § 90-174; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(IX), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-196. - Stage 3 response.

Response to Stage 3 (severe water shortage conditions) shall be as follows:

(1) Goal The goal is to achieve a five percent reduction in daily water demand.

(2) Supply management measures. Supply management measures shall include measures, if any, to

be implemented directly by the city to manage limited water supplies and/or reduce water

demand. Examples include reduced or discontinued flushing of water mains, reduced or

discontinued irrigation of public landscaped areas, use of an alternative supply sources, and use of

reclaimed water for nonpotable purposes.

(3} Water use restrictions, All requirements of Stage 2 shall remain in effect during Stage 3, except:

a,

Irrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours
of 12:00 midnight and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight and shall be by
means of handheld hoses, handheld buckets, drip irrigation, or permanently installed
automatic sprinkler systems only. The use of hose-end sprinklers is prohibited at all times.
The watering of golf course tees is prohibited unless the golf course utilizes a water source

other than that provided by the city.

hitps ://Awww.municode.com/library/tx/montgom ery/codesicode_of_ordi nances?nodeld=COOR_CHSIUT_ARTIIWASESE_DIVAWACODRCOPL

9




, g
1142017 Morntgomery, TX Code of Ordinances PSP

¢.  The use of water for construction purposes from designated fire hydrants under special permit

is to be discontinued,

(Code 2002, § 90-175; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(IX), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-197. - Stage 4 response,
Response to Stage 4 (critical water shortage conditions) shall be as follows:

(1) Goal. The goal is to achieve a five percent reduction in daily water demand.
(2) Water use restrictions. All requirements of Stage 2 and 3 shall remain in effect during Stage 4,
except:

a. lrrigation of landscaped areas shall be limited to designated watering days between the hours
of 6:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. and between 8:00 p.m. and 12:00 midnight, and shall be by means
of handheld hoses, handheld buckets or drip irrigation only. The use of hose-end sprinklers or
permanently installed automatic sprinkler systems is prohibited at all times.

b. Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle not
occurring on the premises of a commercial carwash or commercial service station and not in
the immediate interest of public health, safety, and welfare is prohibited. Further, such vehicle
washing at commercial carwashes and commercial service stations shall occur only between
the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. and between 6:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m.

¢. The filling, refilling, or adding of water to swimming pools, wading pools, and Jacuzzi-type pools
is prohibited.

d. Operation of any ornamental fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes is prohibited
except where necessary to support aquatic life or where such fountains or ponds are equipped
with a recirculation system.

e. No application for new, additional, expanded, or increased-in-size water service connections,
meters, service lines, pipeline extensions, mains, or water service facilities of any kind shall be
approved, and time limits for approval of such applications are hereby suspended for such
time as this drought response stage or a higher-numbered stage shall be in effect.

(Code 2002, § 90-176; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1{IX), 9-19-2000)

Sec. 90-198. - Stage 5 response,
Response to Stage 5 (emergency water shortage conditions) shall be as follows:

(1) Goal The goal is to achieve a five percent reduction In daily water demand.

(2) Water use restrictions. All restrictions of Stages 2, 3 and 4 shall remain in effect during Stage 5,

except:

https:/Awvww.municode.com/library/txim ontgomery/codeslcode_of_ordinances‘?nadeid=COOR_CHQOUTF_ARTEIWASESE_DIV4WACODRCOPL 10111




14/2017 Meontgomery, TX Code of Ordinances \- A
o™

a. [Irrigation of landscaped areas is absolutely prohibited.
b. Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other vehicle is

absolutely prohibited.

{Code 2002, § 90-177; Ord. No. 2000-4, § 1(IX), 9-19-2000)

Secs, 90-199—90-219, - Reserved.

hips./Avww.municode.com/ibrary/tx/m antgomeryfeodes/code_of_ordinances?nodeld=CCOR_C HI0UT_ARTIWASESE_DIVAWACODRCOPL "N




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM# 7

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:

Exhibits: Memo from City Engineer,
the site plan for the Church, copy of
Prepared By: Jack Yates minutes from Planning Commission

Date Prepared: December 29, 2016

Building line variance for Living Savior Lutheran Church

Discussion

The is a variance request to allow the construction on the south side of their
existing building to within five foot of their south property line, the adjacent use
is the “Old Cemetery”.

As you will read, at the Planning Commission the question of a need for a
variance on the parking lot driveways and drainage entered into the discussion —
the Planning Commission decided to recommend approval on the five foot
building line variance and not make any comment on the possible other variances
that may or may not be needed.

A memo from the city engineer is attached. Also attached is the minutes of the
Planning Commission discussion of this item.

Recommendation

Approve the building line Variance requested by Living Savior Lutheran Church.

Approved By

Department Manager
City Administrator Jack Yates Date: December 29,
2016

Date:




8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200

The Woodlands, Texas 77381-4241

JONESICARTER Tel 281.363.4039
Fax: 281,363,345

WWW.JORESCAarter.aom

December 19, 2016

The Planning and Zoning Commission
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77316

Re: Variance Request-Reduction in Side Yard Setback
Living Savior Lutheran Church
City of Montgomery

Commission Members:

Section 98-93(a)(2) of the City of Montgomery Code of Ordinances specifies there shall be a side yard on
each side of a lot having a width not {ess than 10-feet.

s The Developer is requesting a reduction to 5-feet along the southern property line as
shown in the enclosed preliminary site plan.

Enclosed you will find a request for variance and a preliminary site plan as submitted by L Squared
Engineering. While we offer no objection to the requested variance the location in question lies within
the City’s Historic Preservation District and the requested variance, which is shaded in yellow on the
enclosed preliminary site plan, immediately abuts the Peel Cemetery, Additionally, the enclosed
preliminary site plan shows a proposed surface parking area at the intersection of Caroline and Louisa
Streets. This is a potentially problematic feature as it pertains to traffic impact in the area, and vehicular
loading on roads designed to function as minor residential streets. Multiple variance requests would
need to be considered for approval in order to accommodate the driveway locations shown, and
significant improvements to both Cemetery and Louisa Streets would be necessary in order to
accommodate the traffic impact and potential increased storm water runoff.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact, Glynn Fleming and or myself.

Sincerely,

-
o) %f//y/g__w/,,_

Ed Shackelford, P.E.
Engineer for the City

EHS/gef: Ir2
PAPROJECTS\W5841 - City of Montgomery\W5841-0500-00 General Consultation\2016\P&Z Reports\12-27-2016\Living Savior Lutheran
Church, Variance Request-P&Z Opinion.dac

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No, F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 100481068




Enclosures:

cefenc:

Living Savior Lutheran Church — Variance Request
Living Savier Lutheran Church — Preliminary Site Plan

The Honorable Mayor and City Council, City of Montgomery
Mr. Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator

Ms. Susan Hensley— City of Montgomery, City Secretary

Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler & Creighton, City Attorney




G

[ I ST U,

Ny ALFILLN

5091

G A R B |

Br S Tt ) A At

95821 X1 "AlaOBILOW
12245 puog 60¢

yauryy LeIsyIng
1oiaes Buian

NS1S3A
FJENLNIANI




PLANNING COMMISSION ITEM REGARDING
LIVING SAVIOR LUTHERAN CHURCH
REQUEST FOR BUILDING LINE VARIANCE
AT DECEMBER 27, 2016 MEETING

8.Congideration and possible action regarding a building line setback of
Living Savior Lutheran Church Preliminary Plat

Doug Krenz, Chairman of the Building Committee for the Church, Pete
Ames, Chairman of the Board at the Church, and Jonathon White, engineer
for the project presented the item in behalf of the Church.

Mr. Krenz presented plans for the building improvements planned for the
Church. The one point since the project is to utilize the existing structure.
Since it is in the historic district that churches choosing to maintain the
historic appearance of the improvements. Mr, Krenz said the main entrance
to the Church will be on the west side immediately adjacent to the new
parking lot. The new sanctuary will seat approximately 225 persons.

The variance request is for a five foot building line on the south side of their
property, in order to allow construction as planned. The Commission briefly
discussed the five foot variance. Ed Shackelford said that the driveways for
the parking lot were less than the ordinance required 175 feet and the
drainage was also an issue, leading to the question of whether more
variances may be necessary. The Commission agreed with the traffic issue
review and the drainage issue. Discussion followed regarding the wisdom to
approve the five foot building line variance with the question that other
variances may be forthcoming.

Motion by Mrs. Langley, seconded by Mr, Simpson to approve the
variances with the condition that the Church get all variances needing
approval before a building permit is issued. All in favor




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM# 8
Meeting - | January 10, 2017 Budgeted | N/A
Date:_ Amount: '
Department:

Memo from city
.| Engineer, plat,
L | Planning Commission
Date ~ow 0 | discussion
Prepared: | December 29, 2016 Exhibits:

Construction Plans and Final Plat of Hills of Town Creek Section 2

This is Section 2 of the presently under construction Section | of Hills of Town
Creek going on immediately west of Emma’s Way west of the town Creek
apartments on the western end of the City.

The City Engineer’s memo and plat are attached.

Recommendation

Approval of the Construction Plans and final Plat of Hills of Town Creek
Section 2

Approved By

Depa'rt_me:_l_l_t'__'r. | Date:

Manager e

City Jack Yates Date: December 29, 2016
Administrator




B701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200

The Waoodlands, Texaa 77381-4243%

JONES| CARTER Tel; 281.363.4039
Fax: 281.363.3459

WWW johescarter.com

December 19, 2016

The Planning and Zoning Commission
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Rd.
Montgomery, Texas 77356

Re: Submission of Final Plat
Hills of Town Creek, Section Two
City of Montgomery

Commission Members

We reviewed the Final Plat submission for the referenced development on behalf of the City of
Montgomery. Our review was based on The City of Montgomery’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 78,
Section 61 and any other applicable chapters. We offer no objection to the plat and recommend the
Commission approve the plat as submitted.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact, Glynn Fleming and or myseif.

Sincerely,

Ed Shackelford, P.E.
Engineer for the City

EHS/gef:Ir2
P\PROJECTS\W5841 - City of Montgomery\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\2016\P&2 Reports\12-27-2016\Hills of Town Creek, Section
Two Final Plat P&Z Opinjon.doc

Enclosures: Hills of Town Creek — Final Plat

cc/enc: The Honorable Mayor and City Council, City of Montgomery
Mr. Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley~ City of Montgomery, City Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler & Creighton, City Attorney

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Survaying Registration No, 10046106




W X g
iﬂﬂ@@wf
. Y .5

5

The boarings ghown hercon are baped on
TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM,
Cenlral Zoge baged on GP3 Ohsarmaifon.

KOTEE 1} Ml = Foumd 5/8 imch iron vod wilk cap
2) Cross—halched sres ls Remporery sesement for
lnlmL round unll] firack'y [ane [ extended Northeast In n recorded
al
F 1) Tha Coordinates shown hereon tre Terns Cexlenl Zana
¥o, 4203 Slala Plang Grid Coardinates (HADAS) and may be hrought
[ m—m& by applying the fallowing combined scale faclor of

4.} the Flood e Map,
No. 460483, Parel No. 0200G, daled August 18, 20{4, Lhe trael hereon
rarveped lies whally wilhin zones X" and being defined as an arsa
af minlma} fooding nat wilhin any Nood plaoe zane.

OWNER:

HKR INVESTMENTS, LP
200 Wood Skay €t
Manigomery, Taxas 77358

SURVEYOR:

MLUE [ ECIHEELOEIES.

Sunvevina « Marrine
Yexas Registered Firm Number 10163500
14306 Summernmved lakay Drive
Houstap, Texms 77OME-507F
Phone: (281) 225:6876
Teletar: {281) 225:6677
Email: vism@enlouchnet

REVISIONS
Ho.| Dale Conlenl

A Final Plat of:

THE HILLS OF TOWN CREEK Sec 2

51 Lots 4 Reserves

A Subdivision of 12.4768 Acres or 543,440 Square Feet of Lend,

lying in the BENJAMIN RIGBY LEAGUE, Abstract No. 31
in Montgomery, Montgomery County, Texas.

SITE OF TELLS [

H

COUNTY QF MOWTGOWERY §
That wn, TKR [NVESTUERTS,

m-nmbyeuunuunto-wnuw-mmqmm.wmbkmthmdu:.ut,dlmi,;omn-yfmx.udu:.l
& Tough proportionality exists betwwen Lha dadlcstions, Improvemenle, &nA eractions requied under ruch regolaticnr and U
projecied Empact of the nubdiviston.

here sreelr or sl are dedicaled for privle um, such dadication shall Include s essament corering W sirmit arsa which
(e inrlailaticn, operation and malnlenance of water, wewer, ges, declr, Lelephone, coble lelerislon or otder uch ulllity
facliles by e ity and olber williss lavhlly entled Lo promida vervio In e abutling property. Dns easemect ghull sho gevrlds
& Fghk of 4ovea 1o puts agecces enyaged 1 bolh rooloa and emergensy peble servies tushuding lav enfroement, fre peotecti,
midea] rarponse, Lnapsction and code emloroerman

N TEITIMOWY VHERECF, HXR IRVESTMENTS, P baro caceed Lhese premenly Yo bo slgaed by Barcy Bsy, Partn=e Greinio
urtharbaed, Lhiy the doy of_ 20

HIR INVESTMENTH, [P

By Bary Ray, Managlng Parloer

es the acl and deed of e corporallon.
GIVER UNDER WT FLAD AMD SRAL Lhia the dar

INCK AL MEN BY THESE PRESENTE §

That L Dol K Ill, @915 do sexily tat | I.Hlphl!mm

wn aclius] and acrorals suvey of e [and and (hal lbe

mmhlhvvn!hﬂdtmmbﬂlﬂdudumrpwu]
ik of Lbe Gty

of Sontgomery, Texns.

Dacald K Hall, Regirlered Profesonal Land Survoyar Ho. 4070

[ THE UKDERSIGNED, Englnser for the Oty of Monigomery, hershy ourilly Lhal [bis nubdivisan plst canforms Lo all requirementa af the
sabdirison reulations of Lbs Qly & Lo which hls approtal s ragetred

Oty Enginear — Konlgemary

Thir plal and subdiridon bhas ben submliled o sod conddersd by Lho iy Plumdng sod Zoniog Commisdm and e Gty Coumd] <«f
Lhs

Cily of Mimlgerery, Toms, and s Zereby approred by sush Commirdon and Comail
Dated This Pey of . 2o0m
ATTETT:
yooa
Gty Bearelary

o Flanaing and Zonlny Commisdon

EBTATE OF TEXAS

]
§
COUNTY OF MONTGOWERY §

LIEHHOLDERS ACKNO¥LEDGEMENT AHD SUBORDINATION STATEWENT

I, fou Sabvaln, Senlor ¥ico Frodent scling ou bebalf of The Bank & Trorl of
Brynn/Collego Salion, owner end bolder of @ Hen ogalarl he doteod 13 L4 1t
knmu%llﬂl!.! mmh%uﬂﬁmmrﬂm
oort 1 U deks Flle Kot SHARUTVT wnl 28ATSE o Ie ORRORP. n(lhnlcumn'j'
Couty, Texar, do bereby In ull Uings mubundinale cur ntererd In smid properly Yo tho
Parpowss 124 afecls o st plet And e dedica s il Toetridlens W Loretn 1o wld
rabdividion plai wd we Bareby conlim fhel we are lhn prevent owaer suld lien wnd har
5ol ursigned the same nor 4oy part Wiored.

The Bruk k Trurd of Boyon/College Rallm.

Br:
Jos Eatrala, Bemor Vies President

STATE OF TEXAN 1]
COUNTY OF MOMTGOMFEY §

BEFORE ME. wtundﬂ\d{nnﬂmwnmy,mmhu)pamnynppu‘dlu
Bahmlo, known % me 1o be o peovon whose cains B subkcribed W Tha famgoing
hu&mmtmdl&wﬂnd‘dhmhtknmtdmwus or thn
and considerations Bierdn exprened aod bn e capertty Lhereln and herdn
wiated, end os ibe ecl and dwad of such corparalion
CITA UVHDER WY EART XD SEAL, Lkis ihe ey ot . ROLG.

Wy Fxplrec

THE STATE OF TEKAS 4
]
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY §

I, MARK TURNRUIL, Clerk of Lhe County Court of
Monigomery County, Taxes, do hershy certify i1hat Lhe within
ingtrument with ila cerlUficata of suthenUecalon wan Fflad for
reglslration in my office on , BOLG, at
oclock, M., end duly recorded on
o'elock, M., [n Cabinet Sheel
for sald County.

2018, at

of record of

WITHESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, at Conrve, Montgomery
County, Taxas, the day and date lawl above wriltem.

MARK TURNBUILL, Clerk, County Courl,
Woolgomery County, Texss

By Daputy

[ PAGE 1 oF 2




N

b
— ool Tl e, o St e
TE A
w !E Conlre! Zone bagsed on GPY Observalion.
o o
& Y S

=

WOTES: 1.} Ml = Found 6/8 iach iron rod with cap :':e
2.) Croas—Ratshad arsa |1 for
unlll Brock's Lans s extended Norlhaasl in a pecorded plat

3) Tha Coordinaler shown hereon are Texar Canlral Zona
He. 4803 Stals Flane Grid Coordinaies (NADAS) and may be brought
1o surfsce by applying the fallowing oombined seals faclor of:
LOODOTT3A0.

4.) decording o ihe Flood Rale Wap, C
Ho. #80483, Pannl No. 0200G, daled Augusl 13, 2014, Lhe Lract
heroon survayed lies wholly wilhin zones ‘K- and being defined ax an
area of minimal Nooding not within any food plsoe Eone.

GRAPHIC BCALE

A Final Plat of:

THE HILLS OF
TOWN CREEK
Sec 2

51 Lots 4 Reserves

A Subdivislon of 12.478 Acres or
543,440 Square Feat of Land
Eying in tho EENJAMIN RIGHY
IRAGUE, Abstroci No. 31 io

Mantgomery, Montgomsry County,

Texas,

OWNER:

HER INVESTMENTS, LP
20 Wood Shay CL
Monigomary, Texas 77358

SURVEYOR:

q@ALUE ECHKOLSAIES,
atM

| AFPING
Yeray Regislered Fima Mumber 107153500
14308 Summerwood Lakes frive el chrre A\
Houslan, Terms  7AH4-5073 e
Phene: (261) 2250878 o
Toelar: (20} 2250677 «
Email: vismieniouch net

4
!

2 r
0
1 i
1 i
! i
B M 3

X = Lniruzar Crasly Boed Boocds
WENR = Lmbpowery trusly Map ecords
= Xighl ol-Tay

12000 ~—
—=c BT o %W -~

R I ¥ ——
El
5

—

12476 Acres BRUCK"
543,440 "Square Feat™ '_c:ais S‘-zo?LSLE

@
Rertriolod Precrm 4
Restricted 1o
Fumily Parabopment
&
— v TR THE HLLS OF
& He M ¥ = ioasra
o gl® M » TOWN CREEK
4 wrs Q5 oy g% v ig SECTION |
HWOF Tl oemm I, [ w CABMET 7. SHECTS
'3 uf 53 H# & 3% 2348-247, MCPR
! = H & &
I 8 Il b
Lt ) | S |- - S
Some BB:Hj L_ CONPEMSATING

X - Saavan
LR LI
it Lockes

X Ingemas

Bollnck —
Choslam, chox WLCT. Ho. S405400, KLDR 2!&/’( | R TR




PLANNING COMMISSION ITEM' REGARDING
STYLECRAFT FINAL PLAT OF HILLS OF TOWN CREEK
SECTION 2
AT DECEMBER 27, 2016 MEETING

6.Consideration and possible action regarding Stylecraft Final Plat of Hills
of Town Creek, Section 2

Ed Shackelford presented a memo recommending approval of the
construction plans and the final plat. If approved, the owner can start
building on the lots. Mr. Shackelford said that the plat met all city standards.
Mr. Waddell asked about the size of the houses, the answer from Jonathon
White, engineer on the project, was around 2,000 square feet.

Motion by Mr. Simpson, seconded by Mrs, Langley to approve the
construction plans and Final Plat for Hills of Town Creek Section 2.




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Parentheses a 364 ITEM# 9

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:

Exhibits: Pages from City Code of
Corridor Enhancement section,
minutes from Planning Commission
Prepared By: Jack Yates discussion on this subject.

Date Prepared: January 3, 2016

Possible amendment to City Code, regarding Corridor Enhancement section - to
prohibit “exposed cement blocks” from allowed construction in Corridor
Enhancement area.

In re-reading the ordinance it was really was recently noticed that cement blocks

buildings exteriors were not prohibited. The proposed amendment would change
that.

You have the entire sections of the ordinance attached. Section 98 — 390 (a), on

the second line, would be added the words “ and exposed cement blocks” after
the word “panels”.

The Planning Commission discussed and unanimously recommended the
Amendment,

Recommendation

Approve the ordinance to be prepared by the City Attorney with the direction to

amend City Code Section 98-364 (a) to add the words * and exposed cement
blocks” afier the word “panels” in that section,

- g -

Approved By | '
City Administrator Jack Yates | Date: January 3, 2016 |




§ 98-357 MONTGOMERY CODE

(3) Civil action. As an additional remedy in addition to the penalties stated above, the city
attorney or his designee shall have the power to take all necessary civil action to enforce
the provisions hereof and to request appropriate legal or equitable remedies or relief.

(Ord. No. 2014-03, § 1, 5-20-2014)

Secs. 98-358--98-387. Reserved.

ARTICLE VII. CORRIDOR ENHANCEMENT

Sec. 98-388. Purpose.

The city council hereby declares that as a matter of public policy, that it is desirable and in the
best interest of the public health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens of the city to
provide for the enhancement of the overall visual image and perception of the city along its
main entryways and corridors by requiring construction standards for exterior walls and
- fagades on buildings along these corridors.

(Ord. No. 2014-03, § 1, 5-20-2014)

Sec. 98-389. District boundaries and designation of properties.

(a) Properties initially subject to the requirements of this article and initially designated as
the corridor enhancement district include all properties located within 300 feet of the right-of-
way of:

(1) Texas State Highway 105, extending from the eastern boundary of the corporate limits
of the city to the western boundary of the corporate limits of the city;

(2) Texas State Farm Road 149, extending from the northern boundary of the corporate
limits of the city to the southern boundary of the corporate limits of the city; and

(3) The entire Lone Star Parkway, extending from Texas State Highway 105 on the east to
Texas State Highway 105 on the west.

(b) The city council may, from time to time, following recommendation either for or agamst
such designation by the planning and zoning commission, designate certain additional areas in
the city as a corridor enhancement district, and define, amend, or climinate the boundaries of
designation. Such designation and the requirements thereof shall be in addition to any other
zoning district designation or requirement established in this chapter. All zoning maps shall
reflect the corridor enhancement district by the letters "CE" as a suffix to the use designated.
Changes to the corridor enhancement district may be initiated by any person by request
submitited to the city secretary.

(Ord. No. 2014-03, § 1, 5-20-2014)

CD98:50




T

it

N

ZONING § 98-357

(5) Inmeffective waterproofing of exterior walls, roof, or foundations, including broken
windows or doors;

(6) Deterioration of any feature so as to create a hazardous condition which could lead to
the claim that demolition is necessary for the public safety.
(Ord. No. 2014-03, § 1, 5-20-2014)

Sec. 98-357, Penalties.

In addition to the penalties set out under this chapter, the following penalties, which are
non-exclusive, and the exercise of one or more of which shall not preclude exercise of the
others, shall be imposed on those persons or entities found to have violated this article:

(1) Restrictions on future development. If an historic resource, either a landmark or one
located within the boundaries of the historic preservation district, is demolished or
relocated without proper approval, or in the event the plans are changed for the
property from which the resource was removed without approval of the changed plans
by the planning and zoning commission, then the following restrictions, in addition to
any other penalties or remedies set forth in this article, shall be applicable to the site
where the structure of property was formerly located:

a. No building or other permits will be issued for construction on the site, with the
exception of a permit to restore such structure or property after obtaining a
permit, for a period of two years after the date of such demolition or removal. The
city may file a certificate evidencing a violation of this section in the city's official
public records of real property.

b.  No permits shall be issued by the city for any curb cuts on the site for a period of
two years from and after the date of such demolition or removal.

¢.  No parking lot for vehicles shall be operated whether for remuneration or not on
the site for a period of two years from and after the date of such demolition and
removal.

d.  The owner of the site shall maintain the site in a clean and orderly state and shall
properly maintain all existing trees and landscaping on the site. When these
restrictions become applicable to a particular site, the city building official shall
cause to be filed a verified nofice thereof in the real property records of the county
and such restrictions shall then be binding on future owners of the property.

(2) Cumulative remedies. The provisions of this section shall apply in addition to other
enforcement procedures or penalties which are available at law or in equity, including,
butnot limited to, those available for adversely affecting historic structures or property
under V.T.C.A., Local Government Code § 315.006 and V.T.C.A., Government Code
§442.016, as the same may be amended from time to time, with injunctive remedies and
the like. )

CD98:49




—

/,.,w»\

o
ZONING o3 W §98-391

. g-&"“'& Y
O

Sec. 98-390. General requirements .
(a) Theconstruction ¢f metal buildings is allowed within the corridor enhancement district;

however, metal panelsvare prohibited on the exterior walls and facades of such buﬂdings.'AIeas
zoned as District ID are partially exempt from this requirement, provided that the main
entrance of the building visible from the main entryways and corridors shall be 100 percent
covered by the approved materials listed in subsection (b) of this section. The remaining
exterior fagades of a building within an area zoned as District ID must be at least 50 percent
covered by a wainscoting of approved materials listed in subsection (b) of this section, from the
front to the back of the fagade wall.

(b) Within the corridor enhancement district, acceptable fagade materials that may be used
on buildings or structures, individually or in combination, include:

(1) Natural stone.

(2) Brick.

(3) Wood.

(4) Fiber cement siding (e.g., Hardiplank).

(5) Stucco or similar exterior finishing system.

(6) Pre-cast concrete panels which are painted or integrally colored.
(7) Exposed aggregate concrete.

(8) Any other acceptable system that 1s not metal panel.

{¢) New construction within the corridor enhancement district or buildings moved into the
corridor enhancement district will be subject to the construction standards defined in this
article.

(d) The city encourages property owners, architects and builders to recognize the historic
significance of the city, and the desire to maintain and enhance the historic ambiance of the
area. Therefore, voluntary compliance with other architectural aspects of the design guidelines
for the city is strongly recommended.

(Ord. No. 2014-03, § 1, 5-20-2014)

Sec. 98-391. Exceptions and exemptions.

(a) Commercial, institutional, and residential structures existing within the corridor en-
hancement district, prior to the effective date of the ordinance from which this article is derived,
shall not be required to be altered, repaired or modified to meet existing design criteria unless
major facade or structural renovations are planned by the property owner. Major fagade or
structural renovations are defined as changes or renovations to 25 percent or more of any
fagade of the structure or improvements facing a public right-of-way, street or roadway.

CD98:51




§ 98-391 MONTGOMERY CODE

(b) Exceptions to these requirements may be reviewed by the planning and zoning commis-
sion for a recommendation to city council for approval on a case-by-case basis, provided that
the commission and city council find that the proposed building materials and arrangement of
these materials will enhance and preserve the character along the corridor in which the
structure is located. Consideration for exceptions to the above requirements shall be based on
the architectural design and creativity of the structure, and its compatibility with surrounding
developed properties.

{c} Exceptions reviewed by the planning and zoning commission and approved by city
council shall be in effect for only the structure specifically authorized and shall become null and
void should no building permit be issued within 90 days or should the building permit for the

specific structure expire.

(d) The provisions of this article shall not be construed to apply to properties located within
any planned development district in which deed restrictions have already been approved by the
city.

(Ord. No. 2014-03, § 1, 5-20-2014)

Sec. 98-392. Exforcement.

(2} A list of intended exterior materials will be submitted along with the building permit
application. Building permits will not be approved unless acceptable external materials will be
used. '

(b) The city engineer and/or building inspector will review construction to ensure compli-
ance with this article, and no certificate of occupancy will be granted until compliance with this

article 1s achieved.
(Ord. No. 2014-03, § 1, 5-20-2014)

CD98:52




PLANNING COMMISSION ITEM REGARDING
CORRIDOR ENHANCEMENT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT
AT DECEMBER 27, 2016 MEETING

3.Consideration and possible recommendation to City Council regarding an
amendment to the Corridor Enhancement Ordinance

Jack Yates reported that in reviewing the Corridor Enhancement Ordinance
that was noticed that cement blocks construction is not expressly prohibited
as a method of construction. He said the proposal was to add the words
“cement blocks” in Ordinance 98 — 364 second line after the word “panels”.
Mr. Simpson suggested that the word “exposed” before the words “cement
blocks”.

Motion by Mr. Simpson, seconded by Mr. Waddell to recommend to the city
Council to add “exposed cement blocks” to ordinance 98 - 364 (a) after the
words “metal panels”. All in favor.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM# 10

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:

Exhibits: Memo from City Engineer,
Bid tabulation

Prepared By: Jack Yates

Date Prepared: January 5, 2017

Awarding of bid for placement of water and sewer from intersection of 105 and
Lone Star Parkway to corner of 105 and Stewart Creek Road.

As the Engineer’s memo states, the lowest bid recommended is within the
budget for this project. Alternate One is if the project is bored through the high
part of the topography, but Glynn Fleming said that the contractor is planning to
open cut that area, so the actual contract amount will be $297,5550.

On top of the bid the project also has $45,000 of grant administration and
approximately $60,000 of engineering fees so the total comes

for project cost. The Texas Capital Fund grant is $325,000 with the remainder to
come from MEDC funds.

[ will confirm all of these numbers and have a precise, accurate total for you by
the Council meeting time.

Recommendation

Award the contract

yy———
City Administrator Jack Yates | Date: January 5, 2017 |



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 10


8701 New Trails Drive, Suite 200

The Woodlands, Texas 77381-4241
JONES| CARTER ) Tel: 281.363.4039

Fax: 281.363.3459
www.janescarter.com

January 6, 2017

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, TX 77316

Re: Construction of Water and Sanitary Sewer to Serve Pizza Shack
City of Montgomery
TIN No. 74-2063592

Dear Mayor and Council:

We received bids for the referenced contract in our office on January 4, 2017 at 2:00 pm. Bids were
publicly opened and read at that time.

Eleven (11) contractors submitted proposals for this work. A summary tabulation of the bids is enclosed
for your review. Big State Excavation, Inc. submitted the lowest Base Bid Plus Alternate ltem Al proposal
in the amount of $347,550.00.

We have worked with Big State Excavation, Inc. in the past and find them to be an acceptable contractor.
We recommend the referenced contract be awarded to Big State Excavation, Inc. on the basis of their
proposal in the amount of $347,550.00.

If you agree with this award, please execute all copies of this letter and return them to our office for
further processing.

Sincerely,

Ed Shackelford, PE

Approved by:

Date:

EHS:jim/amk
P:\PROJECTS\W5841 - City of Montgomery\W5841-0015-01 Pizza Shack-Public\Construction\Contract Docs\W5841-0015-01 ROA.doc

Enclosure Big State Excavation, Inc.
cc: Mr. Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley — City of Montgomery, City Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler and Creighton, LLP, City Attorney

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



-JI:INEE CARTER

BID TABULATION SHEET

BIDS WERE RECEIVED IN THE OFFICE OF

Construction of Water and Sanitary Sewer to Serve Pizza Shack

Jones & Carter, Inc. - The Woodlands

City of Montgomery Time: 2:00 PM
Public Bid Job No. W5841-0015-01 Date: 1/4/2017
BIDDERS
AR Turnk Kenneth Lamb
Big State arm ‘ee Monarch Civil Texas Pride =S . G MMG Randy Roan
. Construction s Construction Co., :
Excavation, Inc. Constructors, LLC Utilities, LLC Contractors, LLC | Construction, Inc.
Company, Inc. Ltd.
Base Bid $297,550.00 $337,955.00 # $344,665.00 $371,700.00 $418,275.00 $428,803.00 S468,461.00 ¥
Total Base Bid
$347,550.00 $374,355.00 # $360,665.00 $382,100.00 e $538,275.00 $440,803.00 $543,261.00 "
Plus Alternate Al
Bid Security X X X X X X X
HB 1295 Form -- X X X - X X
. R Construction
Doughtie Civil, LLC dba R
D Grimm, Inc. Construction Co., E. P. Brady, Ltd. : .
Inc Construction
’ Company
Base Bid $495,000.00 $582,065.00 $683,295.00 $702,400.00
Total Base Bid
i $544,912.00 $644,065.00 $823,295.00 $842,400.00
Plus Alternate A1
Bid Security X X X X
HB 1295 Form X - — X *

* Denotes Mathematical Error by Contractor



Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM# 11

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:

Exhibits: Proposed policy, minutes
Prepared By: Jack Yates of MEDC discussion on item
Date Prepared: December 29, 2016

MEDC recommended Economic Incentives Policy |

The MEDC Board recommends adoption of this Economic Incentives Policy in
order to have, of record, a policy of possible incentives available to a business
interested in locating in Montgomery. All of the listed Incentives are allowed by
state law and none of the incentives are a required incentive — meaning every
incentive offer would continue to be decided by the City Council.

The MEDC thought that a Policy was needed to be formally adopted and by
including all the incentives, but not requiring any incentive, that the City would
be publicly open to the possibilities without a commitment.

Recommendation

Approve the Economic Incentives Policy

Approved By

Date:

Department Manager

City Administrator Jack Yates Date: December 29,
2016



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 11


City of Montgomery, Texas
Comprehensive Policy of Guidelines and Criteria for Economic
Development Incentives

The City of Montgomery (the "City") is committed to the promotion of quality development in all areas of the City and
to an ongoing improvement in the quality of life for ifs citizens. In so far as these objectives are generaily served by
the enhancement and expansion of the local economy, the City will, on a case-by-case basis, give consideration to providing
incentives as a stimulus for economic development. Itis the policy of the City that said consideration will be provided in
accordance with the procedures and criteria outlined in this document; however, nothing herein shall imply or suggest that
the City is under obligation to provide any incentive to any applicant. All applications shall be considered on a case-
by-case basis by the Montgomery City Counecil.

As authorized by the Texas Constitution, Chapters 311 (Texas Tax Code), 312 (Texas Tax Code) and 380 (Texas Local
Government Code), and other applicable laws, the City has established this incentives policy so asto work in concert with
other taxing authorities as part of an overall publicty supported incentive program designed to create economic tax base
andjob opportunities which bring new economic advantages to and strengthen the current and future economic base of the

City.

All incentives requests will be reviewed by the Montgomery City Council, who will either approve incentives with
modifications, as is, or deny. All incentive approvals will be memorialized in an economic development agreement
between the City and recipient.

Overview of Incentives

Tax Abatement/Tax Grant

Tax abatements, or tax grants, may be offered for improvements to real property and/or for business personal property,
and do not apply to land. Tax abatements, or tax grants, for improvements to real property may be offered to an applicant
that constructs a new or expanded facility to house the applicable project. The tax abatement, or tax grant, will apply
to the taxable value of the new or expanded improvements. Tax abatements, or tax grants, for business personal property
may be offered to an applicant that purchases or long-term leases existing or new facilities, and will apply to the taxable
value or the business personal property added to the facility after the execution of the tax abatement or tax grant
agreement.

Sales Tax Rebates

The City collects 2% sales tax on any taxable retail sale made in the city limits and is divided as follows: 1% is allocated to
the City's general fund, 0.5000% to the general fund as a reduction of property taxes, the 0.250% is maintenance, and the
remaining 0.500% is allocated to the Montgomery Economic Development Corporation. An applicant may apply for a
rebate of all or a portion of the City's local option sales tax for a maximum of three (3) years collected by the Grantee's
business pursuant to the following schedule:

* Annual sales over $4 million - up to 50% rebate for a maximum of three years,

= Annual sales between $2 million - $3,999,999 - up to 40% rebate for Year 1,up to 30% for Year 2, and up
to 20% for Year 3.

» Annual sales less than $2 million - up to 20% rebate for Year 1, up to 10% for Year 2, and up to 5% for Year
3.

Note: The City will pay any rebates based upon receipt of actual sales taxes and the confidential sales
report received from the State of Texas Comptroller's Office, and shall he solely respomsible for
determining the amount of the rebate.




The City may approve a waiver, deferral, grant or rebate of all or a portion of related fees, including but not
necessarily limited to: building permit fees, development fees, connection fees and impact fees.

Cost Pai‘ticipation in_Infrastructure

The City may agree to participate in the cost of the extension, construction, or reconstruction of public
infrastructure necessary for the development of a project. Participation by the city is considered on a case-by-case
basis and shall be limited to infrastricture improvements within municipal right-of-ways or easements.

Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax

The City is committed to attracting lodging and conference center space to the community, A 6% hotel occupancy
tax is levied by the State of Texas and the City levies a 6% hotel occupancy tax, for a total of 12%. These taxes

may be used for purposes as allowed by law.

Tax Increment Financing (TTF) or Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ)

Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code allows political subdivisions to create TIF Zones in order to use the
increased tax value of land from development toward financing of the public improvements in the
reinvestment zone. '

TIF Districts may assist in financing development of unimproved or blighted land by dedicating the real
estate property taxes to be generated by the built project to a TIF Fund for payment of the principal and
interest on TIF Bonds.

Under a TIF, the property owner pays taxes on the full value of the property, and the taxing entities pay
into the TIF Fund the taxes attributed to the added value of the property due to the new development.

TIF Bonds may be issued for a maximum of 20 years and may be used to pay for public improvements
associated with a development (i.e. parking, infrastricture, land acquisition, utilities, etc).

A TTF Reinvestment Zone must meet set criteria as defined by law.

The municipality establishes the TIF Reinvestment Zone and other taxing entltles approve agreements to
participate in the TIF District and set forth the percentage of tax increment they are willing to dedicate to
the TIF Fund, up to a maximum of 100%.

A TIF Board, consisting of 9 to 15 members, is established with representatives from the participating
taxing entities and other representatives as set forth in the state law.

Public Improvement Digtrict

A Public Improvement District is a public financing vehicle (Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Code) that can be used
to finance the cost of public infrastructure related to his project. Under aPublic Improvement District:

A Public Improvement District is formed over property that will benefit from public improvement projects
to be constructed

Assessments are levied in a manner that apportions costs according to the benefits received from the
public improvements

Bonds are issued to fund the improvements. Bond proceeds are deposited to a construction fund

As eligible projects are completed, the proceeds in the construction fund are used to acquire facilities from
the developer

Assessments are paid by the property owners (usually over a period of years, although assessments may
be prepaid in full or in part at any time), Assessments transfer along with title to the property. Therefore, end
users typically pay the bulk of assessments. This is fitting, as the public improvements benefit the end users'

propetrty.




A Neighborhood Empowerment Zone is a tool for cities that would promote at least one of the following: (1) the
creation of affordable housing, including manufactured housing, inthe zone; (2) an increase in economic development
in the zone; (3) an increase in the quality of social services, education, or public safety provided to residents in the
zone; or {4) the rehabilitation of affordable housing in the zone. Tax Code § 378.002.

Xast Track Permitting

At the request of the applicant, permitting time can be shortened if the project needs and justifies the reduced time
frame through the Montgomery Fast Track program.

Montgomery Historic District Facade Improvement Matching Grant Program

Montgomery Historic District Facade Improvement offers matching grants to eligible property owners within the
Montgomery Historic to renovate and enhance building facades. Eligible businesses and residents can receive up to
50% reimbursement of their project up to $5,000 for their enhancements. This program is a part of the City's ongoing

effort to revitalize and promote the Montgomery Historic District.

Structure/Building
The City may construct, or provide funding to construct a building or structure needed for a project.

I.

IL.

II1.

General Guidelines

" Criteria for Economic Development Incentives

A.

Must be reasonably expected to increase the appraised value of the property in the amount specified in the
agreement after the period of abatement has expired.

Project does not have any negative environmental impacts on the community (e.g.; significant pollution,
excessive water usage or hazardous waste).

The degree to which the specified project meets the purposes and objectives of the City, the relative
impact of the project will be used to determine the total value and duration of the incentives, tax
abatement or tax grant provided to any applicant, In compliance with state law no abatement will be for

motre than a maximum of 10 years in duration.

Objective Criteria

In order for the economic development incentives application to be considered the following must be
addressed in written format by the applicant using "City of Montgomely Application for Economic
Development Incentives" attached to this policy as Exhibit B:

"#Uow»

Number of new jobs in Montgomery that will be created by the project.

Average salary detailed by skilled, unskilled and management positions.

Total annual payroll created by the project.

The net tax base valuation (real and personal property) that will be added by the project.

Projected annual sales tax that will be directly generated by the project for a time period of 5 years and

10 years.

Subjective Criteria

In addition to the objective criteria for which specific values can be assigned, several additional




1V,

considerations must be evaluated. Using "City of Montgomery Application for Economic Development
Incentives” attached to this policy as Exhibit B title applicant must respond to the following in written

narrative format, with backup documentation;

A. Explain the types and values of public improvements, if any, which will be made by the applicant.

B. Explain to what extent the project will complement existing businesses.

C. Ifthe project poses any negative operational, visual/image, style impacts or additional noise, etc., provide
details.

D. Provide information including at least five vears financial and operating history of the company. If
company is a start-up provide at least five years of financial information of the sole proprietor and/or any
investors and business plan. ‘

E. The applicant must indicate whether or not they are willing to commit to a definite
construction/completion schedule for the project and to define exactly what will be built (i.c.; what will be
on the tax roll and when).

F. State in the application whether the project is a franchise, expansion, relocation/consotidation from

elsewhere, or the start-up of anew operation,

Value Of Economic Development Incentive Provided

The objective criteria and subjective criteria outlined in Sections II and III will be used by the City Council in
determining whether ornot it is in the best interests of the City to provide economic development incentives
for a particular project. Specific considerations will include the degree to which the individual project furthers
the poals and objectives of the community, as well as the relative impact of the project.

Procedural Guidelines

Any person, organization or corporation desiring that the City consider providing economic development
incentives to encourage location or expansion within the city limits of Montgomery shall be required to comply
with the following procedural guidelines. Nothing within these guidelines shall imply -or suggest that the
City is under obligation to provide any incentive to any applicant.

A. Application Steps: To apply for economic development incentives complete "City of Montgomery
Application for Economic Development Incentives" attached to this policy as Exhibit B and available via
the City of Montgomery's website, www.montgomerytexas.gov. The application must be submitted to the
Montgomery Economic Development Department (the "Department").

B. Application Revigw Steps

1. All information submitted as detailed above will be reviewed by the Department for completeness,
accuracy and the rationale for projections made. Additional information may be requested asneeded.

2. If applicable, the application will be distributed to the aﬁpropriate departments for internal review and
comments. Additional information may be requested asneeded.

3. TIfnecessary copies of the complete application package may be provided to the other appropriate
taxing entities.

C. Consideration of the Application

. After review by the Economic Development Department the application will be reviewed by the
appropriate city staff. Ifneeded, this team will meet with the applicant to negotiate final terms of the




incentives.

2. Prior to approval of an economic development incentive agreement, the economic incentive request
may be scheduled for review by City Council in an executive session meeting. All necessary legal
documents will be considered for approval following evaluation of all relevant staff and review team
recommendations and reports.

3. For a tax abatement, additional steps, including a public hearing, must be incorporated into the

process. These procedures are mandated by State law and are detailed in the Property Redevelopment
and Tax Abatement Act.

Execution of Agreements

Should the City Council determine that it is in the best interests of the City to approve economic
development incentives to a particular applicant, a resolution shall be adopted declaring that under the
guidelines and criferia established herein, the application is eligible for an economic development
incentive in the form of an economic development incentive agreement, The resolution shall further
authorize the Mayor to execute a contract with the applicant governing the provision of the incentives.

Any agreement so adopted must include at least the following specific items:
A. Amount ofthe incentive
B. Duration ofthe incentive

C. Legal description ofthe property




Application Procedure

Any person or company requesting that the City provide an economic development incentive shall comply with the
following procedure:

1. The applicant will submit a completed application for the requested incentive(s) utilizing the application outline
provided by Mentgomery Economic Development Department attached to this policy as Exhibit B, and
available at www.MontgomeryTexas.gov
The applicant will address all applicable criteria set forth in this policy and the application,

The applicant will provide a plat, map or survey showing the location of the property and the proposed project.

4, The applicant will provide a legal description of the property; the name, address, phone number, fax number
of the owner of the property; the tenants or proposed tenants, if any; and state whether the property is to be
owner occupied or leased. : :

5. The applicant will describe in detail the proposed project and the type of economic development incentive(s)
requested. :

6. The application will be submitted by either mail to Montgomery Economic Development Department, P.O.
Box 708, Montgomery, TX 77356, or deliver to 101 Old Plantersville Rd., Montgomery, TX 77316 or via
email to the Economic Development Department.

7. Montgomery Economic Development Department will review the economic development incentive request
and may request additional information from the applicant prior to considerations by City Council. Fatlure
to timely submit any additionally requested information will cause the application to be rejected and will
be deemed withdrawn by the applicant without further action by the City.

8. The City Council will review the requested incentive request pursuant to this policy and recommendations by
City staff.

9. When necessary under this policy the City Council will, ata regular meeting and when allowed by law at a special
meeting, consider proposed economic development incentive agreement,

10. Information submitted by the applicant regarding the requested incentive is confidential to the extent allowed
by law.

Impact Analysis
The City reserves the right to perform an economic impact analysis for any project to determine the impact the project
will have onthe City. If deemed necessary this analysis will be made before an incentive is offered to the applicant.

Nevotiation P
The initial contact and preliminary discussions relating to available incentives is to be between the
authorized representatives of the applicant and the Montgomery Economic Development Department

All negotiations for Economic Development Incentives shall be between the authorized representative(s) of the
applicant and the Economic Development Department and any City employee as designated by the City Manager.

City Council's decision shall be based upon an evaluation of the criteria that each applicant has addressed in
narrative format in their application.

Ifit is necessary for City Council fo take action on the application a resolution shall be adopted declaring that under
the guidelines and criteria established herein, the application is eligible for economic development incentives. The
resolution shall further authorize the Mayor to execute a contract with the applicant governing the provision of the
incentives.




MONTGOMERY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ITEM REGARDING
ECONOMIC INCENTIVES POLICY
AT TWO MEETINGS

May 16, 2016

Discuss/take action regarding Economic Incentives Policy -- Mr. Moravec said
that he was proposing the incentives listed on the presented city of Keller
documents. The issue came up about whether or not to put this information on
the website. The Board generally thought that it should not be openly displayed,
although they incentives package would be open record. The Board directed
Jack to get the incentives policy into approval form for possible action at next -
month’s meeting.

September 19, 2016

Comprehensive Policy of Guidelines and Criteria for Economic Development

Incentives -Jack Yates had a few typos and corrections then gave a brief synopsis
of the Incentives Policy, saying that all the incentives were allowed by state law
and that the only difference between the model Colleyville Incentives Policy
involved the percentage of sales tax rebate under the “Sales Tax Rebate” section
of the policy. There was brief discussion among the Board members.

Motion by Moravec, seconded by Hanover, to approve the Policy and to
recommend to the City Council. All in favor




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM# 12
Meeting January 10, 2017 Budgeted | N/A
Date; | Amount:
Department:

.| Letter of request,

- | Application for Service
and Annexation

Date
Prepared; | December 29, 2016 Exhibits:

Consideration of approving a Utility and Annexation Study for Master Planned

Development [ocated at Lone Star Parkway and Highway 105

This is a request for the engineering study normally accomplished regarding
availability of service to a proposed development. The property owner will place
$5,000 in escrow to pay for the study.

The study normally takes approximately one month and is reported back to the
Council and given to the property owner.

This property is located in the “gap” between Pizza Shack and the Highway 105
Development now under construction at the northeast corner of 105 and the
Parkway. The development plan for this development presently shows two large
buildings (26,000 and 18,000 sq. ft. each) off 105 and three smaller pad sites on
105.

Recommendation -

Approval of the Study upon deposit of the escrow amount to the City.



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 12


L SQUARED ENGINEERING [azmeesme
P: 936-647-0420 F: 936-647-2366

MUNICIPAL  COMMERCIAL ~ RESIDENTIAL | 0222 0470420 7 o6«

December 23, 2016

City of Montgomery City Council
c/o Jack Yates, City Administrator
101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356

Re: Utility Request for Master Planned Development focated at Lonestar Parkway and Highway 105

To Whom It May Concern:

The purpose of this letter Is to formally request water and sewer utility service from the City of Montgomery for a
Master Planned Development located at Lonestar Parkway and Highway 105, This development will entirely
conslst of commercial development that can include anchor retail facilities, restaurants, offices, and retail lease
spaces. The development will require the extension of some public utilities throughout the development to service
all tracts. The estimated capacity being requested for the overall development is approximately 40,000 GPD of
water and 30,000 GPD of sewer, As part of this request, approximately 14 acres of the subject tract will be
requesting annexation into the City of Montgomery at the time of plat submittal.

Please feel free to contact me directly if you have any guestions,

Thank you,
N e

Jonathan White, EIT
L Squared Engineering
Iwhite@L2engineering.com

KenRoc Infrastructure 4 Request for Utilities
12/23/2016 Cleveland — Montgomery — The Woodlands Pagelofi




CITY OF MONTGOMERY
APPLICATION FOR SERVICE/ANNEXATION

Type of Application: Residential X Non-residential _
Contact Name:__Jonathan White (Representing KenRoc Fourteen, LL.C & KenRoc Six, LL.C)

Name of Business: L Squared Engineering

Address: 21123 Eva St #200 Montgomery, TX matt@symmetrydevelopment.com
Contact Info: Phone 936-647-0420  Faxother 832-795-1553 Email_IWhite@L2engineering.com

Type of Business:_Mixed Use

Type of Service Requested (mark all that apply): X InCity X _InET) ___ Beyond ETJ
Estimated Date Utility Construction is to Begin:_April 2017

Estimated Proposed Acreage in Development:_ 20.7031 Acres

Estimated Total Taxable Valde: $373,360 tand _$10,000,000 Improvements
Estimated Number of Lots: 6 Estimated Commercial Value;$10,000,000
Estimated Size(s) of Lots: Varies 1.02 Acres to 14.943 Acres

Estimated Value of House and Lot: Varies

Estimated Construction Cost for Public Facilities, if Applicable: $100,000

Estimated Detention Basin Land Cost, if Applicable:
Type of Wastewater to be Put in System:_Commercial

Water Capacity Requested:_40,000 gpd Wastewater Capacity Requested;_30,000  gpd
Type of Streets: Public _ X Private

Name and Address of Title Holder to Referenced Property: _KenRoc Six LLC, & KenRoc Fourteen, LLC

Status of Property: _ X _Acquired Under Contract Qptioned
Due diligence period closes on (date) N/A

Sighature of Applicant: Date:
Relationship to Owner:

Please attach a metes and bounds description of the tract, land plan, conceptual plat, and
location map along with applicable deposit made payable to the City, to the Application
indicating proposed location of project and boundaries of subject tract.

Applicant agrees that it shall notify the City if any of the above information (including
ownership of the tract) should change during the Application process.

City Contact Info:

City Administrator

City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery Texas 77356

Ph: (936) 597-6434

Fx: {936) 597-6437

Email: jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.u




For City Use Only

Engineer’'s Recommendation:
Operator's Recommendation:

Is Annexation Required:

Amount of Deposit Paid:
Amount of Service Recommended:

Additional Capacity Required: Water gpd Wastewater
Cost of Additional Capacity: Water Wastewater
Fees Required: Capital Recovery Fee Capacity Fee

Tap Fee Plan Review Fees Inspection Fees
Additional Considerations:

gpd




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM# 13

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:

Exhibits: Notes to Council for May
10™ meeting from City
Administrator on the subject of the
water and sewer tap item on the May
10" agenda,

May 10" first page of minutes
showing Council members present
and absent,

May 10" Council minutes of
discussion regarding Water/Sewer
tap fee increase,

Ordinance 2016-10 Adopting new
Prepared By: Jack Yates Fees

Date Prepared: January 5, 2017

Request from Council member to revisit the water and sewer tap fees established
May 10, 2016

This item was requested by a Council member who said that he had been
approached by developers who said that the fees are onerous and that he would
like to get a clearer understanding of the benefits to the city and the reason for
the fees.

The reason for the fee increase was that Gulf Utilities was charging $550 for a
water and the city was only charging $350--- and for sewer Gulf Utilities was
charging $1300 and the city was only charging $550. So the thought was to
increase water taps to $900 and sewer taps to $2600. The sewer increase was in
part due to, also, to the sewer rate review just received showing how much sewer
was under charging for the service. Also an overriding reason for the increase
was so that future connections were assured to be paying for their cost of
entering into the system.



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 13


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Recommendation

Take no action, leaving the current fees in place.

City Administrator Jack Yates | Date: January 5, 2017 |




Ihgﬂmu‘n\(p“ -"TQ[\M C/‘LI Q\O(Mc»':'m“?/ ZAET

To: Mayor and City Council members
From: Jack Yates

Subject:  May 10™ Council meeting

Date: May 6%, 2016

Item #1 Final report from P and Z Commission regarding Martin Special Use
Permit—A memo is in your binder under this item number.

Item #2 Final report from P and Z Commission regarding McCoy's rezoning
request——- A memo is in your binder under this item number.

ltem #3 Public hearing regarding city water and sewer tap fees— The proposed
ordinance is in your binder, For the water and sewer residential taps | have Guif
actual expenses times 200%, for the irrigation tap | have it at the Gulf price
without the 200% markup. My thinking on the irrigation tap, is to encourage such
taps to prevent as much water as possible from getting into the sewer system-
which should help prevent/delay the capital cost of sewer treatment plant for a
period of years.

Item #4 Approval of Minutes

Hem #5 Action regarding Martin Special Use Permit— A memo is in your binder
under this item number,

Item #6 Action on the water and sewer tap fees -- The reason this subject is before

you is that Gulf is charging more than what the city is charging. This is an effort ¢
to at least recover what the city is getting charged, but also to allow new
customers to pay their rightful share of the past improvements to the system and

future improvements as well.

Item #7 Review city budget 2015 — 2016--in your binder is a copy of the general
fund and utility fund and the capital projects fund with highlighted areas that |
will cover during the presentation.

Item #8 Discussion regarding borrowing funds for capital outlay projects—Jim
Gilley will be present at the meeting. In your packet is a review of projects and a
rough plan for multi-year staging of the projects.




\\’X \cc\v& NS ftem 3

‘\k

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
May 10, 2016
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Kirk Jones Mayor
Jon Bickford City Council Position # 1
T.J. Wilkerson City Council Position # 3
Rebecca Huss City Council Position # 4

Dave Mc¢Corquodale  City Council Position # 5

Absent; John Champagne, Jr.  City Council Position # 2 e———""

Also Present: Jack Yates City Administrator
Larry Foerster City Attorney
INVOCATION

T.J. Wilkerson gave the invocation,

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Receive Final Report from the Planning and Zoning Commission regarding a request from

Michele Martin for a Special Use Permit for the property located at 14375 Liberty Street,

Montgomery, Texas 77356, located immediately adjacent to Liberty Street, for a

micropigmentation tattoo business, exclusively for eyebrows and eve shade, as an accessory

use of an otherwise approved and permitted use,




(\f\‘mu-)res oS mﬁ‘( {o*“ a ki

would strike that wording regarding the alteration or change to the outside appearance,

chatacter of the premises, Mr. Foerster said that he would agree with them on this matter,
Jon Bickford seconded the motion.

Discussion: Rebecca Huss asked Ms, Martin if she was okay with the changes that had

been made to the document. Ms. Martin said that she was okay with the changes.
The motion cartied unanimously. (4-0)

. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS, REPEALING ORDINANCE NO, 2011-22 AND ORDINANCES AMENDING
SAME, ESTABLISHING AND ADOPTING CHARGES FOR RESIDENTIAL WATER
. AND SEWER SERVICE TAP FEES FOR CONSUMERS INSIDE AND QUTSIDE THE
CITY PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 90 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY_OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS: ESTABLISHING AN AMENDED SCHEDULE
OF TAP FEES AS REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 90 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES
QF THE CITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING A
TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE. PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE: AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER PUBLICATION.

Jon Bickford asked whether the $550 fee being charged today includes a meter, Mr. Yates
said that fee does not inciude that cost. Jon Bickford said that they were actually lowering
the cost for irrigation meters. Rebecca Huss said that the cost today for the irrigation meter
is $550, Mr. Muckleroy said that the current $550 charge includes the cost of the meter,
Rebecca Huss said that the City was actually losing cash. Jon Bickford asked if it was a
similar situation with the residential taps. Jon Bickford confirmed that the City was only
obliged to provide water outside the City limits where they choose to have pipe in the

ground. The Mayor said that was correct,

05/10/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




ﬂ/\tv\uﬂmsﬂfﬁ fV\a“( (o7 coftra

Mayor Jones asked whether previous ordinances addressed water taps outside the City
limits, and are there any meters that are going to be outside the City Hmits, and should they
be charged the same fee. Mr. Muckleroy said the tap fees are the same, but the water rates

were higher.

T.J. Wilkerson asked what the sewer tap rate would be, Mr. Yates advised that the
residential sewer tap fee would be $2,600, Jon Bickford said that it would cost $3,500 plus
the cost of the meter to connect a home up to the system for water and sewer. Mr, Yates
said that the meters were $185. Mayor Jones said that would be $3,700 for a new home to
hook up the City. Rebecca Huss said that the $2,600 reflects the average between the costs,
Mr, Muckleroy said that right now the City is charging the customer $550 when Gulf
Utility does a sewer tap it is in the $1,000 - $1,400 range, Mr. Muckleroy said that Gulf
Utility is giving the City a flat rate for the tap up to 8 feet deep and 40 feet in length, and
anything that falls in that perimeter will be the $1,300.

Jon Bickford moved to accept the ordinance as proposed. Dave Me¢Corquodale seconded

the motion.
The motion carried with 3-Ayes and 1-Nay vote by T.J. Witkerson. (3-1)

Mayor Jones asked T.J. Wilkerson if he wanted to comment why he was opposed to the
ordinance. T.J, Wilkerson said that he would rather not discuss the matter right now, but
said that he had been talking to some people and the rate was a little too steep for them.
T.J. Wilkerson said he told them that he would come back with a better understanding and
have a comparison of certain areas and other cities. T.J. Wilkerson said that he felt that the

rate was steep, but he was only one vote.

. Discussion reparding 2015-2016 City Budget,

Mr. Yates stated that $17,000 remains to be collected in ad valorem taxes, but since the
tax will be coming in right at $1,340,000 budgeted amount, even though we are over for

the first six months, the $321,944 under fines is actually a net of $195,000 afier the

05/10/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12




1152017

Ordinance No. 2016-10 | Code of Ordinances | Montgomery, TX | Municode Library

Drdinaste Adwytiop Al Foer

QRDINANCE NO. 2016-10

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2011-22
AND ORDINANCES AMENDING SAME, ESTABLISHING AND
ADOPTING CHARGES FOR RESIDENTIAL WATER AND SEWER
SERVICE TAP FEES FOR CONSUMERS INSIDE AND QUTSIDE THE
CITY PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 9% OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS;
ESTABLISHING AN AMENDED SCHEDULE OF TAP FEES AS
REQUIRED BY CHAPTER %0 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY; REFPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT;
PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; PROVIDING
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE AFTER PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, Chapter 90 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Monigomery, Texas, at
Sections 80-73(b) and 90-74(b), authorizes the City Covmeil by ordinance to establish charges for
residential water and sewer tap fees serving residential customers; and

WHEREAS, the City Councat, having previously considered advice and input from the
City Engineer and City Staff, has determined appropriate rates and tap fee schedules for certain
residential water and sewer ufility services, based on historical data and other factors related to
the costs of providing such services to the customers; and

WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is appropriate to repeal only Section 6 of Ordinance
No. 2011-22, dated September 27, 2011, as it apphies to residential sewer and water tap charges
while concurrently creating this new Ordinance providing forrestdential water and sewer tap charges;
and

WHEREAS, the City Secretary caused to be posted anotice of public hearing on this matter;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council, pursuant to such notice, held its public hearing and heard all
persons wishing to be heard both for and against the proposed residential water and sewer tap

charges, on the 10% day of May, 2016;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION1.

RESIDENTIAL WATER AND SEWER TAP FEES

The following schedule of water and sewer tap charges required by Chapter 90 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Montgomery is hereby adopted and shall read as follows:

Page [ of 2

hitps:/www.municode.comflibraryfx/montgomeryfordinances/cede_of_ordinances ?nodeld=770664

12




/62017 Ordinance No. 2016-10 | Code of Ordinances | Montgormery, TX | Municode Library

Residential water tap charge (Section 90-73(b)) ... $900.00
Plus cost of meter

Rasidential frrigation tap. ... $450.00
' Plus cost of meter

Residential sewer fap charge(Section 90-74b) ... rriiiiiiciiiieeee .52 600,00

SECTION 2 Construction. This Ordinance shall not be construed sc as to conflict
with any state or federal statute.

SECTION 3. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All provisions of the ordinances
of the City of Montgomery in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed,
and all other provisions of the Ordinances of the City of Montgomery not in conflict with the
provisions of thes Ordinance shall remaim in full force and effect.

SECTION 4. Severability Clause. If any provision, section, exception, subsection,
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the application of same to any person
or set of cirommstances, shall for any reason be held uvaconstitutional, void, invalid or otherwise
unenforceable, the mvalidity or wnenforceability shall not affect other provisions of this Ordinance
or their application to other sefs of circumstances and to this end all provisions of this Ordinance
are declared to be severable,

SECTION 5. Texas Open Meetings Clause, H is hereby officially found and determmed
that the meeting at which this Ordinance was constdered was open to the public as required and
that pubiic notice of the fime. place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the
Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance ghall become effactive and be in full
force from afier publication as required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 10" day of May, 2016.

Kiurk Jones, Mayor
ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED ASTO FORM:

Larry Foerster, City Attorney

Page 2of 2

https:/iwww.municode.com/library/bdmentgomery/ordinances/code_of ordinances tnodeld=770664 272




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM# 14

Meeting Date: January 10, 2017 Budgeted Amount: N/A
Department:

Exhibits:
Prepared By: Jack Yates
Date Prepared: January S, 2017

Request from Council member to discuss the platting process of the City,

This item was requested by a Council member who said that he had been
approached by developers who said that the platting process is onerous and time
consuming--- he would like to get a clearer understanding of the reason for the
current process.

The City Engineer will present the formal required process and the reasons for
the review processes now in place.

Recommendation

Take no action, leaving the current process in place.

Approved By
City Administrator Jack Yates | Date: January 5, 2017 [



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 14


Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM# 15
Meeting June 14, 2016 Budgeted =~ | N/A
Date: Amount: =
Department:
.| January 6, 2017 oot Minutes from
: - MEDC, information
R : provided by Jason

Date . Long regarding the
Prepared: Exhibits: | miniature golf course.

Approval of up to $15,000 of MEDC funds to be used for city tap fees on Mr.
Long’s connection for a miniature golf course development,

Discussion

The MEDC considered a $38,700 request and after discussion ( MEDC minutes
attached) decided to provide up to $15,000 that would be paid to the City Utility
Fund for actual tap fees with the thoughts that the funds would only be spent
toward the end of his development (meaning that the project was in the building
phase before any MEDC funds would be used) and so the funds would stay
internal to the city (with the City Utility Fund receiving payment , not Mr.
Long).

Recommendation
Approval of the use of the MEDC funds as proposed

Approved By

Department = Date:
Manager -

ol Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: June 7, 2016



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 15



ITEM #7

City of Montgomery, TX CHrY o
Economic Development Corporation MONTGOMERY
Grant Application TEXAs B o 1837

Company Name: | nngview Greens Miniature Golfing

Company Contact: Title;
Jason Long Co-Owner

Best Phone: Alt. Phone:
815.514.0420

Email Address:
jason.long@commscope.com

Physical Address; City, State, Zip:
614 Fantasy Lane Montgomery, TX 77356
Mailing Address (if different): City, State, Zip:
Applicant’s years of experience in this business: How long has his business been located in
0 Montgomery?

Do you own or lease this facility? If leased, please provide owner information and a copy of lease agreement,

Owner Phone:

Owner Name:

m OWN I:l LEASE

Provide a detailed description of the proposed project as “Exhibit A* attached

What is the estimated totai cost of the project? $ 876,374
(Include supporting information, ie estimates/quotes as “"Exhibit B” attached)

How much funding are you requesting from the MEDC for this project? $ 38,700
(Typical grants are awarded at 1/3 the total project cost or up to $5,000)

Are you_'ré'cm'es't_ing an éi(co:ap_tidrﬂ for'-agldltioné'l_ _fu_ndlhg"o_h this b:r__o.ject?_'- EEEEAR I B $ o
{Please provide additional supporting evidence. for this request as “Exhibit C”) "

When will this project begin? What is the estimated completion date? .

Q4 of 2016 Q1 of 2017

Attach all drawings of planned improvements as “Exhibit D”

Include a description of expected commercial revitalization impact & sales tax revenue impact as “Exhibit E”

If this project will employ Montgomery vendors, please supply details as “Exhibit F”

sy
e .
e ;y_t;-'at\

Applicant’s Signature:
Titte: _Owner

pate: 11/11/16

-OFFICE USE:
Date Application Received:

Date Presented to Board: I:l APPROVED D DECLINED

Performance Agreement Project Compietion Date: Funding Date; Check Number:
Received:




DISCUSSION
REGARDING JASON LONG
PRESENTATION TO MEDC BOARD
AT NOVEMBER 21, 2016 MEETING

Jason Long request for MEDC funding of a miniature golf course -- Shannan
Reid presented the request of $38,700 of Mr. Long. She also presented the
Economic Impact Report. Mr. Long was present and said that he had presented
his proposition to about 20 banks and the SBA and had been turned down by all.
President Jones asked what the funds would be used for, the answer was water
and sewer connections fees. Mr. Moravec asked if he had done any marketing
research and the answer was that he had.

Motion by Moravec, seconded by Fox that Mr. Long receive an amount not to
exceed $15,000 for water and sewer tap fees at the time of connection. The vote
was Moravec, Fox, Champagne, Kerr and Hanover voting yes and Dill and Jones
voting no. Motion passed.




@wners:]ulie & jason Long

ﬂason long@commscope.com f 815.514.0420

Longwew Greens (LG) is a proposed miniature golf course development, to be built in Montgomery, TX. LG would

be desngned built, maintained and presented to our customers as a premium miniature golfing experience for all ages
~to.enjoy. Unlike other family entertainment centers that attempt to mix other family entertainment angles (e.g.
f battlng cages, arcades, go-karts, etc.), this venue will have a laser sharp focus on one thing and do it very, very well:
e offer our customers the highest quality miniature golfing experience for miles and miles around.

@

SENE T

.,

e Clubhouse & Sice Blan.....

kg

thiae

Tentd sitad veritoa of 1he vt duo. Tht bolt

% Fernland Historical Pork +
<

S Shoppar b Cleppet B 8 Saloon .
L °

: .__Mlonigomm'y' ! T
. o  Montgomery, TX (Buffalo Springs)

I

 Ransoin’s Steakhouse -

Course Sketches:

Ve want the course to appeal to all ages, not
just kids; we want adults of alf ages to want to
go there too — no exclusions.

Therefore, the theme will be something that
transcends all age groups:

Botanical — Waterfalls, ponds, tush greenery,
flowers, trees, etc,

Texas lcans in green designs — Montgomery is
the birthplace of the Texas Flag; we pay
homage with our course designs.

“"Cowboy Boot"

[Ty —

i hamt s

"“Texas Flag"

Cotmid teraatt boc saier pilng




	AGENDA
	ITEM# 1 - SIMS PUBLIC HEARING FOR SUP
	ITEM# 2 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM# 3 - GREEN ZONE BUILDING PROGRAM
	ITEM# 4 - PRESENTATION OF DEVELOPMENT PLANS PHILLIP LEFEVRE
	ITEM# 5 - SIMS SUP ORDINANCE
	ITEM# 6 - WATER CONSERVATION PLAN ORDINANCE
	ITEM# 7 - LIVING SAVIOR LUTHERAN CHURCH VARIANCE REQUEST
	ITEM# 8 - THE HILLS OF TOWN CREEK FINAL PLAT, SECTION 2
	ITEM# 8 - THE HILLS OF TOWN CREEK FINAL PLAT, SECTION 2
	ITEM# 8 - PLAT
	ITEM# 8 - PNZ INFO

	ITEM# 9 - CORRIDOR ENHANCEMENT ORDINANCE REVIEW
	ITEM# 10 - AWARD BID FOR PIZZA SHACK AREA UTLITY IMPROVEMENT PROJ
	ITEM# 10 - AWARD BID FOR PIZZA SHACK AREA UTLITY IMPROVEMENT PROJ
	ITEM# 10 - BID TABULATION SHEET

	ITEM# 11 - ECONOMIC INCENTIVES POLICY
	ITEM# 12 - AUTH UTILITY AND ECONOMIC FEASIBLITY STUDY
	ITEM# 13 - REVISIT WATER AND SEWER TAP FEES
	ITEM# 14 - DISCUSS CITY PLATTING PROCESS
	ITEM# 15 - FUNDS FOR MINI GOLF COURSE DEVELOPMENT
	ITEM# 15 - FUNDS FOR MINI GOLF COURSE DEVELOPMENT
	ITEM#15 -OVERVIEW




